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AFFIDAVIT 

I the undersigned, 

JOHAN WESSEL BOOYSEN 

do hereby state under oath that: 

1. 

I am an adult male South African citizen residing in Pretoria, Gauteng Province. 

2. 
All facts stated herein are, unless the context indicates otherwise, within my own 

personal knowledge and are to the best of my belief both true and correct. 

3. 

I will attempt to keep my submission brief in order to avoid prolixity and to 

unnecessarily burden the Commission. I will seek to highlight key aspects, events 

and dramatis personae. Should it become necessary I will provide additional facts. 

MY POLICE CAREER AND QUALIFICATIONS 

4. 

I was a career policeman having joined the South African Police in 1976. I was an 

officer before our democracy in 1995 and was part of the transformation process 

from a Police Force to a Police Service. I regard my integration into the new Police 

Service, including my promotion to the ranks of Colonel, Brigadier and Major­ 

General subsequent to the democratic dispensation in South Africa, as one of my 
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her to Lieutenant-General Vishnu Moonoo ("Moonoo"). Moonoo, was obviously 

taking instructions from Phiyega so Moonoo replaced Botha as the investigating 

officer and transferred the case to Major-General Norman Taioe ("Taioe") who 

conducted the rape investigation wherein the former President Jacob Zuma was the 

accused. The former President Zuma was acquitted. 

202. 

also know that there was tension between Moonoo and Dramat when Moonoo 

apparently refused to cooperate with Dramat in the Nkandla investigation. Dramat 

confirmed to me in September 2016, that he had requested the Nkandla docket from 

Moonoo, the National Head of Detectives. At the time, this docket involved the abuse 

of state funds at Nkandla, the private residence of former President Jacob Zuma. 

203. 

Phiyega went on to dismiss Lebeya from SAPS. Lebeya had previously headed 

Organized Crime and had also ordered an investigation into Mdluli. I was privy to 

Lebeya's correspondence as it formed part of Madonsela's investigation into the 

looting of the Secret Services Account in KZN by Cl. 

204. 

Colonel Brian Padayachee ("Padayachee") from Crime Intelligence who had 

managed the intelligence in the Panday investigation, in terms of Act 70 of 2002 

(communication interception) submitted two affidavits dated 28 January 2019 and 

4 February 2019 with regards to his investigation. Copies of these affidavits are 

attached as Annexure "JWB 26.". 
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230.10. "It will take South Africa's criminal-justice sector years to recover from 

the disruptive impact of the Zuma era, during which good men were 

booted from their jobs for doing the right thing. The chilling impact this 

had on prosecutors and police officers is immeasurable. Those who 

were willing to bend the rules and apply two sets of rules, one for Zuma 

and his cronies and another for the rest of us, thrived". Adriaan 

Sasson & Pieter du Toit. In their book "Enemy of the People' page 95. 

230.11. I was interviewed by researchers for "State Capacity Research Project 

titled "Betrayal of the Promise: How South Africa is being stolen" 

published in May 2017. I have read the report. The chapter dealing with 

"Securing a Loyal Intelligence and Security Apparatus", [pages 19 and 

20] accurately chronicles some of the events I have described above. 

Pages 50 to 52 under the heading "Investigations and prosecutions" 

are also relevant. I attach an extract from this report as Annexure 

"JWB 29." 

230.12. I have titled a book which I co-wrote with journalist Jessica Pitchford 

"Blood on their Hands" I sincerely believe that those who allowed 

themselves, for whatever reason, to become part of the captured 
factions at the NPA and in Law enforcement have done our country a 

grave disservice. They have blood on their hands. 

231. 

I know and understand the contents of this declaration. 

I have no objection to take the prescribed Oath. 

I consider the oath to be binding on my conscience. 
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I certify that the deponent who acknowledges that he knows and understands the 

contents of this affidavit; that it is the truth to the best of his knowledge and belief 

and that he has no objection to taking the prescribed oath and regards the same 

as binding on the deponent's conscience and the administration of the oath 

complied with the Regulations contained in Government Gazette No. R1258 of 

21 July 1972, as amended. This affidavit is signed and sworn to before me at 

Centurion on this the 2nd Day of April 2019 at 14 : 3 2' 

EX OFFICIO: -- - 
IOU'fH AftMIQAN .-&16! &eRV16E 

MANAGEMENT INTERVENTION 
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���"-- 
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ANNEXURE ''JWB26'' 
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COLONEL B PADAYACHEE 

CRIME INTELLIGENCE 

PROVINCIAL HEAD OFFICE 

DURBAN 

KWA-ZULU NATAL 

1. 

I am a Colonel in the South African Police Service serving under the Provincial 

Head, Crime Intelligence, Provincial Head Office Durban. I was appointed in the 

South African Police Service in 1982 and have 36 years' service. I am currently 
the Section Commander at Intelligence Collection. 

2. 

During the period of the investigation relating to the Soccer world 201 O corruption 
and fraud case involving R 60 million (CAS 781/06/2010), I was the Section 

Commander Security Intelligence. I have been working with Crime Intelligence 

Project Driven investigations since 2000. 

3. 

4. 

During the course of the investigation large scale corruption was uncovered 

involving, inter etie, Senior SMS Police Officials, Police Officers as well as very 
influential and prominent Government Officials/individuals. I am aware of the 

existence of much evidence that is available to prove this. I am informed that 

for purposes of the terms of reference of this Enquiry the details of the evidence 

need not be set out. This evidence will be put before the State Capture 
Commission. 

One of these individuals who is implicated in this investigation is Mr E �rd 

Zuma (hereinafter referred to as "Zuma"), son of the former President Jacob 

Zuma. 
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5. 

The investigation revealed that Zuma approached Major General Johan 

Booysen (hereinafter referred to as "Booysen") with regard to the Thoshan 

Panday (herenafter referred to as "Panday") corruption cases and requested 

his assistance, more particularly in retrieving money, that was being withheld 

by the State because of the pending cases against Panday, for example, 

the R60 million Fraud and Corruption case which emanated from the 

2010 Soccer World Cup. Confirmed factual evidence reflect that Zuma 

contacted Panday and that he met with Booysen. I am personally able to 

confirm that this is reflected in the evidence. 

6. 

Several intercepted calls revealed serious death threats against Booysen. 

During one of the intercepted communications between Panday and one 
Colonel Rajen Aiyer (hereinafter referred to as "Aiyer''), Panday said the 

following to Aiyer: "the only way you can help me is to take Booysen out". 

This was a serious threat which was communicated to Booysen to be vigilant 
and take proactive steps to safeguard himself and his family. I had personally 
heard this from the intercepted call. 

The investigation revealed that Aiyer sounded and appeared to be desperate 
both financially and emotionally. It was common knowledge that he was a� 7 going through a difficult divorce. 

"-------, 

It was further established that Aiyer was physically in possession of a // � 

fully automatic RS Assault Rifle. »-: (, 
This was communicated to Section Head, Commercial Crime, Brigadier Lategan ff . ( 

\ � 
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(hereinafter referred to as "Lategan") who then took possession of the RS rifle 
from Aiyer. It is unknown. why he was in possession of the rifle as this is a non­ 

standard weapon and is only issued to operational members during specific 

operations. For purposes of this Enquiry further elaboration in relation hereto is 

not required. 

7. 

The investigation factually revealed that Panday was desperate to get rid of 

Booysen. I have been privy to that factual information. 

8. 

The evidence at our disposal indicates that Panday liaised with several 

prominent high profile individuals as well as senior 

Police officials to assist him in this regard. Large sums of money were also paid 
to corrupt officials. 

9. 

The investigation factually revealed that Panday requested one Mr Deebo 
Mzobe (hereinafter referred to as "Mzobe") to assist him in getting rid of 

Booysen ("Clipping his wings"). Mzobe is the cousin of former President 

Jacob Zuma. 

Panday told Mzobe that they need to "clip Booysen's wings" and 

suggested to Mzobe that they have a meeting and briefing a;� 

. Page 3 of 8 

This information about Mzobe being the cousin to President Jacob Zuma is 

public knowledge and also reported in the media. 
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"how to take care of Booysen because he is obviously now standing in 

the way of everything". I have listened to this recording and confirm this. 

Mzobe requested some money from Panday, which the latter said he 

will "sort out for him". 

This evidence is factual and reflected in the transcripts of recordings that are in 

the possession of SAPS. 

10. 

I informed Booysen that the threats against him were serious and that Panday 
has sought assistance from very "powerful individuals" to deal with him and the 

investigating officers. These threats were communicated to Booysen on 

different occasions either telephonically or personally. 

The above evidence is factual, received through my investigation and I can 

confirm that that is what the evidence reflects .. 

11. 

The investigation also revealed a conspiracy between Colonel Aiyer, Panday 
and Sunday Times journalist, Mr Wa Africa (hereinafter referred to as "Wa 

Africa"). Factual evidence is available where Wa Africa requested criminal 

dockets from Panday. He even gave Panday the criminal case numbers. 

Panday, in turn, then requested these dockets from one Captain Pipes 
HafajeeO 

(hereinafter referred to as "Hafajee"). � 

Wa Afrika was well informed and he knew that Booysen was going to be arrested and / / 

suspended, He also told Panday that Booysen flew in a helicopter and blocked� . 

path of suspects and the Cato Manor members then shot and killed the deceased in 
Howick case. He gave Panday the case numbers. 
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Aiyer gave crime scene photographs to Panday who in turn gave it to Wa Africa. 

These photos were published with headline news "Cato Manor Death Squad". 

Booysen was thereafter charged with Fraud and Corruption as well as running a 

so-called "Hit Squad". Wa Afrika met with Panday at Umhlanga 

in February 2012. 

The main, single witness in these charges against Booysen and members of 

the Cato Manor Organised Crime Unit, ironically, was the same Aiyer, whom 

had conspired with Panday earlier. Booysen was thereafter suspended as a 

result of these charges. 

The investigation revealed that Aiyer was on the payroll of Panday and as a 

result of his (Aiyer's) actions and contribution, Panday was successful in having 

Booysen removed. I am able to confirm this. 

11. 

Further facts; 

11.1 FORMER ACTING DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC PROSECUTIONS: 
KWAZULU-NATAL, ADVOCATE SIMPHIWE MLOTSHWA 

The former Acting Director of Public Prosecutions: KwaZulu-Natal, Advocate 

Simphiwe Mlotshwa (hereinafter referred to as "Mlotshwa") was removed from 

his acting position after he refused to withdraw all Panday related matters. I 

drew this inference from my own conclusions as well as articles in the media. 

His life was even threatened and he thereafter had bodyguards assigned to 

him. I physically saw him with body guards. 

After refusing to withdraw the Panday related matters on the grounds that there 

were prima facie cases against Panday and others, he was replaced by curre� 
Director of Public Prosecutions, Advocate Moipone Noko (hereinafter refe� '\, 
to as "Noko"). I base this on my own observations and articles in the media. 
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Noko, within a short period of her appointment, withdrew all the cases against 

Panday and his associates. 

Mlotshwa thereafter resigned and is now practicing as an advocate and a 

member of the Society of Advocates: Pietermaritzburg. 

11.2 ADVOCATE BHEKI MANYATHI (Senior State Advocate OPP: 

KZN) 

Advocate Bheki Manyathi (hereinafter referred to as "Manyathi"), Senior State 

Advocate at the Director of Public Prosecutions: KwaZulu-Natal was the 

prosecutor in the R2 million Corruption case against Panday and co-accused 

Colonel Madhoe. 

At the time, Manyathi was recommended to be promoted to the position of 

Senior Deputy Director of Public Prosecutions as Regional Head of the SCCU, 

in KwaZulu-Natal. This is my personal knowledge as I knew him and I interacted 

with him. 

His refusal to withdraw the case against Panday and Madhoe resulted in the 

appointment being withdrawn on the eve of his appointment. This is my own 

conclusion and my personal observation. This I say because of the systematic 

sequence of events around the Panday and Mad hoe matters. 

Manyathi resigned thereafter and is currently in private practice at the Society 
of Advocates in Durban. 

Page 6of8 

Panday conspired with a Sunday Times journalist, WaAfrica and published the 

Cato Manor Death Squad article to discredit Booysen. 

Information and photos were furnished by Panday to the journalists. 

The journalists even informed Panday that Booysen was going to be removed 
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from the case and will be suspended. 

Booysen was indeed removed from office and suspended. 

These very same journalists were awarded prize money and awards for the 

articles they published. 

The journalists and their articles were recently publicly discredited and the 

Sunday Times issued a formal apology to Booysen. 

All prize money and awards were subsequently returned as well. 

Aiyer assisted with and was instrumental in the publication of these false articles 

by the journalists. He supplied official SAPS photographs to Panday who in turn 

handed those to the journalists. 

The interceptions and further investigations revealed that Aiyer was on the 

payroll of Pan day. 

He has since been dismissed from the SAPS for defeating the ends of 

justice. 

12. 

In 2012 Booysen, after much negative media coverage, was suspended from 

office. 

---- ,_,..-- . . ' 

�/ 
�-r--1----�����-COLONEL 
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,-"' 
I ,A 

I certify that the deponent has acknowledged to me that he knows and understands 

the contents of this declaration, that he has no objection to taking the prescribed oath 

and considers it to be binding on his conscience. 
�rl�Q.V\ 

Thus signed and sworn to before me at PIETE:RMARITZBURG on this o�,a_ day of 

FEBRUARY 2019. 

SOUTH AFRICAN POLICE SERVICE 
PROVINCIAL Cfi!ME INTELLIGENCE 

2019 -02- 0 4 

KWAZULU NATAL - 
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COLONEL B PADAYACHEE 

CRIME INTELLIGENCE 

PROVINCIAL HEAD OFFICE 

DURBAN 

KWA-ZULU NATAL 

1. 

I am a Colonel in the South African Police Service serving under the Provincial 

Head, Crime Intelligence, Provincial Head Office Durban. I was appointed in the 

South African Police Service in 1982 and have 36 years' service. I am currently 
the Section Commander at Intelligence Collection. 

2. 

During the period of the operation in question, I was the Section Commander 

Security Intelligence. I have been working with Crime Intelligence Project Driven 

investigations since 2000. 

3. 

During November 2010, I was tasked by the Provincial Head, Crime Intelligence, 
to investigate serious death threats against the investigating officers tasked with 

the investigation of the 2010 Soccer World Cup Corruption, Durban Central CAS 

781/06/2010 - Fraud and Corruption. 

4. 

Major General Moodley (hereinafter referred to as "Moodley") handed a written 

request to me which had been compiled by Brigadier Lategan (hereinafter 
referred to as "Lategan"), Section Head: Specialised Commercial Crime. The 

request included a statement of Colonel Van Loggerenberg (hereinafter referred 

to as "Van Loggerenberg") which clearly set out the threats made against the 

officer and his team. The threats were also physically directed at him and his 

family 
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5. 

On receiving the investigation, I immediately activated an intelligence network 

and initiated an application for monitoring and interception of communication in 

terms of Section 18 of Act 70 of 2002 (hereinafter referred to as "the 

application"). 

6. 

The authorised interception was directed against the main suspect in the 

investigation Mr Thoshan Panday (hereinafter referred to as "Panday") and his 

co-accused. The information received from the report of Van Loggerenberg 
stated that the main suspect responsible for the death threats was Panday The 

investigation confirmed that the death threats were real and the investigators 
were informed accordingly. 

7. 

The application is subject to very strict and stringent protocols and has to be 

factual and correct in respect of every aspect. 

8. 

The application is first perused by the Provincial Office for Monitoring and 

Interception. It is thereafter forwarded to the Head Office Monitoring and 

Interception Section, where it is further checked and verified. 

The application is then taken to the Crime Intelligence Head Office Legal 
Section where it is further checked for legal justification and legal principles. 

9. 

The application is then perused and recommended by the National <?.vi 
�Jr! 
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Commissioner of Police or his delegate. Currently this authority is delegated 
by the National Commissioner to the Divisional Commissioner of Crime 

Intelligence. 

10. 

These applications are thoroughly perused by the Divisional Commissioner 

and it is only recommended if he/she is satisfied that the application is bona fide 

and legally justified. Recommendations can at times take several weeks. 

11. 

After the application is recommended, it is taken to the Designated Judge who 

Authorises such applications. There is only one Designated Judge for the whole 

country. 

12. 

The Designated Judge also thoroughly peruses the application. There has 

been occasions where the applications were not approved or returned for 

rectifications or amendments. 

13. 

The application in question followed the relevant protocols, legal principles and 

was approved by the Designated Judge, Judge Khumalo on 2010/11/15 for a 

period of 3 months from date of approval. 

14. 

The approved application was referenced as Direction 235/2010. The 

interception data commenced from the 18 November 2010. 

15. 
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The original data is stored at Crime Intelligence Head OIC. The OIC makes 

copies of the interception data on compact discs ("CDs") and these CDs are 

forwarded to the applicant/investigators. 

16. 

The data/recordings are secured by encryption codes and can only be accessed 

with the encryption codex. 

17. 

Applications for an extension (hereinafter referred to as the "extension 

application") of the interception Directive are also subject to the same strict 

protocols as the initial application. 

18. 

The extension application has to be well motivated setting out clearly the reasons 

for the extensions. 

19. 

Full factual reports must also be included in the extension application stating 

what was found during the investigation and factual reasons for the extension. 

20. 

Full factual reports were included in all extension applications to the Designated 

Judge. 

21. 

The factual reports and progress reports in the extension applications were su..,..._,__ __ 

that the Judge granted several further extensions. 
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22. 

The application was factual and had sufficient legal grounds. This is also 

supported by the fact that after Judge Khumalo retired, Judge Makgoro was 

appointed as the Designated Judge in his place. 

23. 

Judge Makgoro after thoroughly perusing the extension applications approved 
several extensions thereafter. These subsequent approvals by the well­ 

respected Judge Makgoro further endorses the factual and seriousness of the 

content of the application. 

24. 

All interception data was managed by me and was secured in a locked safe after 

hours. 

25. 

The interception data received, are copies of the original data and are regarded 
as working data. 

26. 

Once transcripts are required for specific data, an application is made for the 

original data following the chain of evidence protocols. 

27. 

This chain of evidence protocol is also applied when the data is transcribed. 

JWB-484Y10-WSM-112LEA-10-112



28. 

All interception data is strictly managed and safeguarded within the Minimum 

Security Standards of Crime Intelligence Policies and Guidelines. 

29. 

During the course of the investigation large scale corruption was uncovered 

involving, inter alia, Senior SMS Police Officials, Police Officers as well as very 
influential and prominent Government Officials/individuals. 

30. 

One of these individuals included Mr Edward Zuma (hereinafter referred to 
as "Zuma"), son of the former President Jacob Zuma.:. 

31. 

The investigation revealed that Zuma approached Major General Booysen 
(hereinafter referred to as "Booysen") with regard to the Panday corruption 
cases and requested his assistance. Confirmed factual evidence showed that 

Zuma contacted Panday and confirmed that he met with Booysen. His message 
was "Booysen is begging to see me" "Lets play him". 

32. 

The investigation clearly established an enterprise with Panday at the helm 

of the syndicate and several police officials actively participating in the 

furtherance of the objectives of the corrupt enterprise and benefitting from the 

proceeds of the crime. 

33. 

Panday was desperate to make the case against him "go away" and was 

prepared to pay any amount of money to achieve this objective, including 
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approaching persons to assist in "taking out" investigators. Large sums of 

money were indeed paid out. 

34. 

Several intercepted calls revealed serious death threats against Booysen. 
During one of the intercepted communications between Panday and one 

Colonel Rajen Aiyer (hereinafter referred to as "Aiyer"), Panday said the 

following to Aiyer: "the only way you can help me is to take Booysen out". 

This was a serious threat which was communicated to Booysen to be vigilant 
and take proactive steps to safeguard himself and his family. 

Aiyer sounded and appeared to be desperate both financially and emotionally. 
It was further established that Aiyer was physically in possession of a 

fully automatic RS Assault Rifle. 

This was communicated to Lategan who then took possession of the 

R5 rifle from Aiyer. It is unknown why he was in possession of the rifle 

as this is a non-standard weapon and is only issued to operational members 

during specific operations. 

35. 

It was factually revealed during the investigation that Panday was 

desperate to get rid of Booysen. 

36. 

Panday liaised with several prominent high profile individuals as well as senior 

Police officials to assist him in this regard. Large sums of money were also pai 
to corrupt officials. 
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37. 

The investigation factually revealed that Panday requested one Mr Deebo 

Mzobe (hereinafter referred to as "Mzobe") to assist him in getting rid of 

Booysen ("Clipping his wings"). Mzobe is the cousin of former President 
Jacob Zuma. 

Panday told Mzobe that they need to "cllp Booysen's wings" and 

suggested to Mzobe that they have a meeting and briefing on 

"how to take care of Booysen because he is obviously now standing in 
the way of everything". 

Mzobe requested some money from Panday, which the latter said he 

will "sort out for him". 

38. 

The recordings of the "clipping his wings" conversations are available. The 

intercepted recordings are evidence which is included in the transcripts 

compiled for the Corruption matter (Durban Central GAS 466/09/2011 ). 

39. 

This threat was communicated to Booysen during briefing sessions in 

respect of the threats against him and the investigators. 

40. 

Booysen was warned that the threats against him were serious 

and that Panday has sought assistance from very "powerful individuals" 

to deal with him and the investigating officers. 
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41. 

This included having investigating officers replaced. 

42. 

Factual evidence is available where force numbers of investigating officers 

were requested and given to high profile influential individuals to assist in 

having the investigating officers replaced. 

43. 

The investigation also revealed a conspiracy between Aiyer, Panday and 

Sunday Times journalist, Mr WaAfrica (hereinafter referred to as "WaAfrica"). 

Factual evidence is available where WaAfrica requested criminal dockets from 

Panday. He even gave Panday the criminal case numbers. Panday then 

requested these dockets from one Capt Pipes Hafajee (hereinafter referred to 

as "Hafajee"). 

Aiyer gave crime scene photographs to Panday who in turn gave it to WaAfrica. 

These photos were published with headline news "Cato Manor Death Squad". 
Booysen was thereafter charged with Fraud and Corruption as 

well as running a so-called "Hit Squad". 

The main, single witness in these charges, ironically, was the same Aiyer, whom 

had conspired with Panday earlier. Booysen was thereafter suspended as a 

result of these charges. 

The investigation revealed that Aiyer was on the payroll of Panday and as a 

result of his (Aiyer) actions and contribution, Panday was successful in having 
Booysen removed. 

Due to the sensitive nature of the information revealed during the 

abovementioned investigation, I made several attempts to bring the.,,?- 
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contents thereof to the personal attention of the National Commissioner and 

Divisional Commissioner: Crime Intelligence for urgent intervention and 

Guidance, with no response. 

44. 

During July 2015 I received a letter from the former National Commissioner, 

General Phiyega, ordering me to surrender the recordings to her office within 

48 hours. 

45. 

I found this highly irregular and unlawful as I was the legally authorised 

applicant authorised by the designated Judge, to intercept and be in 

possession of the Interception recordings. 

46. 

The legal procedure to obtain the recordings/copy thereof or access thereto, 
is to bring an application in terms of Section 205 of the Criminal Procedure Act 

51 of 1977. 

47. 

A serious threat was made that if I failed to comply with the instruction I will be 

charged departmentally. I was given 48 hours to surrender the recordings or 

face disciplinary action. 

48. 

I thereafter reluctantly complied and handed over the complete recorded 

interceptions under duress. 
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49. 

The Acting Divisional Commissioner, General Zulu, was informed that the 

handing over of the recordings were unlawful and that there were pending 

cases which were still subjudice. In spite of my caution, she instructed me to 

hand over the recordings. 

50. 

The complete recordings were personally handed over by me directly to 

General Zulu. 

51. 

I am the lawful custodian of the intercepted recordings, authorised by the 

Designated Judge to be in possession and utilise such recordings as may be 

required by law for investigation and court purposes . 

52. 

Herewith the following relevant cases that were registered against Panday: 

Durban Central CAS 781/06/2010 Fraud (R60 million)- 2010 Soccer World Cup 

Durban Central GAS 122/03/2012 Fraud 

Durban Central GAS 466/09/2011 Corruption (R2 million) - Bribery of Booysen 

There are several other outstanding criminal cases which were not registered 

due to the lack of will from the NPA/DPP to prosecute Panday and his 

associates 

54. 

All the above cases were withdrawn on a single controversial representation 

made by Panday. The representations were neither investigated, nor did the -: 
Page 11 of 19 

JWB-490Y10-WSM-118LEA-10-118



Director of Public Prosecutions KwaZulu-Natal, Advocate Moipone Noko, apply 
her mind to the relevant cases which she declined to prosecute. Her decisions 

caused utter shock and discontent amongst the senior prosecutors responsible 

for the cases. 

55. 

Serious concerns were highlighted in Advocate Noko's decisions to decline to 

prosecute all the cases involving Panday and his associates. The timing of her 

decisions are also relevant as it coincided with the extension of the contract for 

the former KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Police Commissioner Lieutenant General 

Ngobeni who together with her husband, General Lucas Ngobeni, received 

gratifications from Panday. Factual evidence is available to support the corrupt 

relationship between Panday, General Ngobeni and her husband General 

Lucas Ngobeni. 

56. 

It has to be emphasised that the investigation has been fraught with 

intimidation, threats and interference from the outset to date. 

57. 

It is very clear that the SAPS and NPA were captured in respect of the criminal 

investigations against highly influential criminal suspects. 

58. 

The evidence is available to support the above statement. 

59. 

Herewith a time line with chain of events which clearly indicates State 

Capture: 
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59.1 FORMER ACTING DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC PROSECUTIONS: 
KWAZULU-NATAL, ADVOCATE SIMPHIWE MLOTSHWA 

The former Acting Director of Public Prosecutions: KwaZulu-Natal, 
Advocate Mlotshwa was removed from his acting position after he refused to 

withdraw all Panday related matters. 

His life was even threatened and he thereafter had bodyguards assigned to 

him. 

After refusing to withdraw the Panday related matters on the grounds that there 

were prima facie cases against Panday and others, he was replaced by current 

Director of Public Prosecutions, Advocate Noko. 

Advocate Noko, within a short period of her appointment, withdrew all the 

cases against Panday and his associates. 

Advocate Mlotshwa thereafter resigned and is now practicing as an advocate 

and a member of the Society of Advocates: Pietermaritzburg. 

59.2 ADVOCATE BHEKI MANYATHI (Senior State Advocate DPP: 

KZN) 

Advocate Manyathi, Senior State Advocate at the Director of Public 

Prosecutions: KwaZulu-Natal was the prosecutor in the 

R2 million Corruption case against Panday and co-accused Colonel Madhoe. 

At the time, Advocate Manyathi was recommended to be promoted to the 

position of Senior Deputy Director of Public Prosecutions, Regional Head oft 

SCCU, in KwaZulu-Natal. 
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His refusal to withdraw the case against Panday and Madhoe resulted in the 

appointment being withdrawn on the eve of his appointment. 

Advocate Manyathi resigned thereafter and is currently in private practice at 

the Society of Advocates in Durban. 

59.3 ADVOCATE MOIPONE NOKO: DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC 

PROSECUTIONS KWAZULU .. NATAL 

Shortly after the appointment of Advocate Noko as Director of Public 

Prosecutions in KwaZulu-Natal, she withdrew all the criminal cases against 

Panday. 

59.4 COLONEL LEN SHERRIF 

Colonel Len Sherrif was the investigating officer in the R2 million Corruption 
case, where Panday and Madhoe bribed Booysen. 

Colonel L Sheriff was falsely set up in a fraudulent sting operation by 
Panday and his associates and was subsequently removed as investigating 
officer from the case. 

Panday conspired with a Sunday Times journalist, WaAfrica and published the 

Cato Manor Death Squad article to discredit Booysen. 

Information and photos were furnished by Panday to the journalists. 

The journalists even informed Panday that Booysen was going to be removed 

from the case and will be suspended. 

Booysen was indeed removed from office and suspended. 

These very same journalists were awarded prize money and awards for the 
articles they published. 
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The journalists and their articles were recently publicly discredited and the 

Sunday Times issued a formal apology to Booysen. 

All prize money and awards were subsequently returned as well. 

Aiyer assisted with and was instrumental in the false articles published by the 

journalists. He supplied official SAPS photographs to Panday who in turn 

handed those to the journalists. 

The interceptions and further investigations revealed that Aiyer was on the 

payroll of Panday. 

He has since been dismissed from the SAPS for defeating the ends of 

justice. 

60 

In 2012 Booysen, after much negative media coverage, was suspended from 

office. 

61. 

The ongoing capture of the Criminal Justice system ensured that he 
did not return to his post or office. 

62. 

Booysen retired in 2017. 

63. 

Immediately after the suspension of Booysen, I became a target and w 

subjected to threats and intimidation. 
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64. 

I was served with a 48 hour notice transfer from my office. I immediately 

appealed to the then Acting Divisional Commissioner of Crime Intelligence, 
General Chris Ngcobo, who intervened and caused my reinstatement. 

65. 

After much harassment and intimidation, including death threats, I was 

suspended in 2014. 

66. 

I was suspended for almost a year without any charges being brought or any 

disciplinary hearing being held. 

67. 

I approached the courts for intervention and the suspension was declared 

unlawful. I was thereafter reinstated. 

68. 

The threats and intimidation however still continued. 

69. 

Two weeks after I was suspended, Major General Anwar Dramat, National 

Head of DPCI (Hawks) was also suspended (on Christmas eve). 

70. 

A month later Mr Robert McBride, National Head of IPID was also suspende� 

Page 1� 

JWB-495Y10-WSM-123LEA-10-123



71. 

The sequence of the events and suspensions clearly show the Political 

influence of Panday in respect of State capture. 

72. 

It was very clear that Panday was politically well connected as a result of 

his close relationship with the former President Zuma and his family. 

73. 

It is even alleged that the former President Zuma spoke directly to Panday. 
The recorded interceptions also revealed Panday boasting about his visits 

to Nkandla and contracts that he had been given by the President. One of 

these included a contract to build houses. 

74. 

The interceptions revealed that Panday openly boasted about his 

relationship with the President and his family. 

75. 

Prior to the removal and suspension of Booysen, the initial investigating officer 

in the case of Corruption (Durban Central CAS 466/09/2011) was removed after 

being set up by Panday in a sting operation. 

76. 

This operation was successful in removing the investigating officer Colonel 

Sheriff as a result of collusion and conspiracy between Panday and two DPCI 

investigating officers namely Colonel W S Mhlongo and Colonel C Jones. 
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77. 

Colonel Jones arranged the sting operation and Colonel Sheriff was removed 

from the investigation. 

78. 

There are several other senior officers who also assisted Panday with his 

criminal enterprise, these include Detective Branch Commanders who closed 

criminal dockets on Panday's instruction and also took the dockets to him 

in return for payment. 

79 

It was factually revealed in the recordings that Panday was the "go to 

person" for Police promotions, transfers and sorting out criminal 

dockets/cases for suspects/accused 

80. 

It was clear from the interceptions that the Criminal justice system was indeed 

captured. This included the courts (DoJ and Judiciary), Correctional Services 

(DCS), SA Police Service and the NPA. 

81. 

The interceptions also revealed that: 

• Suspects were referred to magistrates and prosecutors at certain courts 

where their release on bail would be guaranteed; 
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• Arrangements and payments were made to Correctional Service officials 

for suspects who had been detained at Correctional Services to be placed 
in hospital wards at the facility; 

• Case dockets closed by certain Branch Commanders, on the instructions 

of Panday. 

82. 

This is all I wish to state at this stage. 

I know and understand the contents of this affidavit. 

I have no objections to taking the prescribed oath. 

I consider the prescribed oath to be binding on my conscience. 

I certify that the deponent has acknowledged that he knows and understands 

the contents of this affidavit which was submitted by him. 

This affidavit was sworn to before me and the deponent' signature was 

placed ther on in my presence at Durban o� '{JI zg at IJ: 30 

SA POLICE SERVICE 

DURBAN 
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VIDEO RECORDING VN-20131125 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  Chose to take that way. Yes, yes, yes. He is okay, 

yes he is okay. He is okay, we sorted him out and I am truly grateful for your support. 

Hey, you know if you were not there that lady would have resigned. If you were not 

there she would have resigned… [indistinct]. Imagine if she had resigned, all the 5 

information because I am not there when she is not here because she is not here 

when I am not there. Yes, yes. You have shown true brotherhood and he is also 

grateful in the way things are done and we, yes, it could be that. Yes, and address it 

too. Yes, my brother, thank you so much.  Sure.   

 Yes, Bebe wanted to resign, he was very cross hey. There is this guy from 10 

TRC. They are going to complain about us that us we do things without consulting 

the TRC. 

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  Who is TRC? Oh the, for the what’s then, the 

exhumation. 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  They are… [indistinct] to do justice so now they are 15 

complaining that us we do things here, we do not, we do their things and we said to 

them and our job is to investigate and exhume and transport remains. This function 

things because the Premier said they need us. We must get involved. 

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  Yes. 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  Like now we are saying… [indistinct] no look, speak to 20 

the Premier and tell the Premier not to use us. We do not just go and grab things. 

Olivia said no, us, you tell us… [indistinct] knows us. He will come and say no, no, I 

am not going to work with Justice to prove anything you hear. They must work 

through you. So they have turned things around. These people [indistinct].  

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  Oh. 25 
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COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  So they wrote a stinking email… [indistinct]. I think 

was crying the whole day, Friday and wanted to resign and screaming [indistinct].   

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:   Oh man. 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:   … [indistinct] no Bongi you cannot because if you 

leave… [indistinct].  5 

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:   Yes, if she leaves [indistinct] you will have to come here 

to rescue management. You know I was thinking I told Ramani when he was here. 

You know there is only one person… [intervenes].    

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:   Go over that lieutenant.  

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:   Yes. 10 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:   …. [indistinct] They are not strong because people 

[indistinct] is a contract. It is having these people. It is a contract [indistinct].  

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  Oh, okay. 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  It is a contract. They can voetsak… [indistinct] and his 

contract gets released month by month but he is a head of all… [indistinct] 15 

permanent.  

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  In the NPA yes. 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  So? 

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  And where does, I thought it was this thing was under 

Shaun. 20 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  Sean yes Shaun is here, but MPTT [indistinct]. 

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  Oh is Madelane, the one that was in the photo there with 

Debra? 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  Yes, that is the one and Madelane is on contract. 

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  Oh man. 25 
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COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  So Madelane if they do not want to renew their 

contract.  

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  They will say voetsak. 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  Voetsek. 

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  Close you… [intervenes]. 5 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  [Indistinct] wanted to do that. 

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  Yes. 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  He wanted to do that until someone from MK said, 

hey you are you in charge of Walter Sisulu. Walter Sisulu was our commander in 

chief and what do you want? And then he came back and said no, no, no, he wanted, 10 

I am sure he wanted to put his connection. 

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  Yes, no, hey, hey, hey. 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  Yes, tomorrow chief if you need anything I am around. 

My car will be there. I will be, I mean for that day I am.  

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  No I mean the whole, our whole point here is one 15 

collection, no, no, no. Our thing here with the boss, these guys from RAF tomorrow 

morning all I am going to do I will link you up with them so that you can get all the 

documentation.  The thing that I do not want, is not I am just bringing A to B. 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  Yes. 

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  These people of yours I do not want to know them. I do 20 

not want to know them, you see.  I go to you, I say to you WS go and see so and so, 

that is it because if it comes back and this woman okay, she gets the post back… 

[indistinct] through these guys. 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  She will obviously know. 

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  You see I mean she can know about it later on… 25 
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[indistinct] but for now ... [intervenes]. 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:   For now yes… [indistinct] and she does not have a 

problem… [indistinct]. 

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  Yes, yes, no. 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO: [Indistinct] fuck you and then… [indistinct]. I called 5 

dude somewhere and I said [indistinct] office. 

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  Yes. 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  But he continues with it [indistinct]. 

MR TERENCE JOUBERT: Because there you are free. No one can tell you but my 

thing is one. Another thing we have like this murder case of yours now, the uncle and 10 

all that, guys we must not sleep on top of information. We must, get whatever you 

can get your hands on. Brother we must hurry up because tomorrow as you say this 

woman is in a hurry even us we want to know where are we going because we do not 

want to stay here… [indistinct] and then… [intervenes]. 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:   I am struggling to eat from the drug addicts 15 

(amapara). 

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  Yes, so from my side it is just that this whole thing of the 

visit and this party and all that up until Friday I will be up-down, up-down, but sure 

thing tomorrow I might say, hey man because I will not be using my phone. I will be 

using another crook. Man, I am ready. Where can we meet? Okay Sir, come. Here is 20 

my man.   

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  Take my thing. 

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  You meet and then you will sort it out yourselves. Then 

you can send your guys to do the collection. 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  Yes, yes, yes. 25 
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MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  Yes, you see we will not know nor appear. That way at 

least she is sharp she is safe.  But tomorrow, I mean on Thursday you see okay I 

trust Jebu, Sir is he my guy. Your ma’am I do not trust her I want to, I will just, I will 

stay out of her war path but I hope that you have cleared the way right now because I 

do not want things that are… [intervenes]. 5 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  No, I told her… [indistinct]. People will be like that 

because… [indistinct]. 

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  Yes. 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  Yes, and do not worry. I on the side, I have got my 

[indistinct]. 10 

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  Yes. 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  When he told me hey there is a fire, he started to 

explain because I told her that when I said tell me there is a fire… [indistinct] then he 

said hey there is a fire I stop. I do not. 

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  Ask questions. 15 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  There is understanding otherwise I should have not 

sitting on third floor. I said that is [indistinct] I am there, we know each other, we fight 

but we come he will come and fight with me, [indistinct] together. 

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  Yes no I mean he must know this. 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  And understand. 20 

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  He must not say the only thing that… [intervenes].  

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  And we are not a sangoma. We do not get what is 

happening but if it is something that requires your call you will sensitise it and but if 

you are not briefed of those things [indistinct] if you are not briefed yourself 

[indistinct]. They have to brief you otherwise we are going to charge [indistinct]. 25 
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MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  Yes. 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  He said, yes you are right. I said exactly. It is what we 

are saying [laughing]. 

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  Yes, I mean that way I like the way you handled it but at 

least now he must not want to beat me all the time  5 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:   No, never 

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  Because obviously here myself and Ramani we are not 

okay, you see. 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  No, even Ramani, is it not that Ramani wanted to beat 

him? 10 

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  Yes. 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  … [indistinct] that boss I want to beat him… 

[indistinct] he said no, no it is embarrassment. 

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  Okay. 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  I have been complaining about it. I will make him an 15 

appearance. I will not go there but I don’t know. What if he says that I do not know? 

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  (Laughing). 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  That I cannot vouch for. 

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  Yes, no, I know. 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  He will not tell that; I think he will give the boss. 20 

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  Yes, no, no broer as long as we are sharp. 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  We are sharp yes. 

MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  In that ceremony I do not care about the rest of the… 

[indistinct] as long as us... [intervenes]. 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  Now Doctor Mnisi is still [indistinct]? 25 
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MR TERENCE JOUBERT:  No, he is toeing the line for now. 

COL WELCOME MHLONGO:  Yes, he is toeing the line there is nothing more. There 

is no other way.  

NO FURTHER AUDIO (from +- 09:45 to 12.30) 

 5 
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kn ow  i f  I  m a y  m e n t io n  th e  w i t ne ss ?  

C HA IR PER SO N :    I  th in k  yo u  m ay,  I  t h i n k  we  m a y  h av e  b e en  t o l d  –  I  

t h i nk  we  h av e  b e en  t o l d  y es .  

M R  M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A :      T h ey  t h e n  p r o du ce d  th e  

s ta te m e n t  o f  a  M r  Da n i ku s  he  w as  a  G re ek  n a t i on a l ,  i t  wa s  an  u ns ig n e d  

s ta te m e n t .  

A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR E TO R IU S  SC :    Wo n ’ t  y o u  sp e l l  th a t  na m e  

p l e as e?  

M R  M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:      I t ’s  D - a - n - i - k - u -s ,  

Da n ik us ,  C h a i r  t ha t  w as  a n  un s i g ne d  s ta te m e nt ,  t he n  wh e n  I  ask e d  fo r  10 

an y  s ta te m e n t  i m p l ic a t i n g  G e ner a l  Bo o yse n  t h ey  t he n  p r o du ce d  a  

s ta te m e n t ,  I  c an n o t  re m e m b er  t h e  n a m e  b u t  I  w i l l  t r y  t o  r ec o l le c t  i t  w as  

a  p e r so n  w ho  a pp ar e n t ly  w as  a  s ec ur i t y  g ua rd  f o r  a  S ta ng er  Ta x i  

Ass oc ia t io n  w h o ,  i n  h is  s ta te m e n t ,  w as  a l l eg i ng  th a t  a  Mr  M h l o n go  w h o  

wa s  a  m e m b e r  o f  t h e  e xe cu t iv e  c o m m i t te e  o f  S ta n ger  Ta x i  As so c i a t i on  

wa s  –  ha d  co l l ec te d  m o n i es  f r o m  th e  Ass oc ia t io n  a nd  t o ld  t h e  

Ass oc ia t io n  i n  t h i s  s ec ur i ty  g u ard ’s  p r es en ce   t h a t  ,  t h a t  m o ne y  w as  

re qu i r ed  by  th e  G en er a l  an d  th a t  h e  w a s  p res e n t  w he n  M h l o ng o  an d  th e  

Ch a i r pe r so n  a t  th e  t i m e  wa s  M r  Z o nd i  o f  t he  S tan g er  Tax i  Ass oc ia t io n  

we n t  t o  m e e t  w i t h  t h e  G e ne ra l  a t  t he  ga te wa y.   C ha i r  t h a t  i s  t he  20 

G e ner a l  i t  d oe sn ’ t  ev en  d esc r i be  t h a t  i t  wa s  G en er a l  Bo oys e n ,  t h a t  i s  

t he  p r ob l e m  bu t  he  do es n ’ t  sa y  t h a t  h e  ov erh e ar d  t h e  c on ver sa t io n  

be tw ee n  e ve n  t h a t  G e ne ra l  a nd  M h lo n go ,  t h a t  w as  t h e  o n ly  ev i d e nc e  

t ha t  th ey  sa id  t h a t  i t  i m p l ic a ted  G e ne ra l  Bo oys e n .  

C HA IR PER SO N :    So  t h i s  pe rs on  w h o  ha d  s ig n e d  th is  s ta te m e n t ,  y ou  
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say  h e  w as  a  se cu r i ty  gu ar d  s i m p l y  s a i d ,  h e  w a s  p r es e n t  w he n  

so m e b od y  c o l l ec ted  m o ne y  a nd  s a i d  i t  w a s  fo r  a  c e r t a i n  Ge n er a l  o r  t he  

G e ner a l …( i n te r ve n t i o n ) .  

M R  M XO L I S I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A :      Wan te d  t h e  m o ne y.  

C HA IR PER SO N :    Wa nte d  th e  m o ne y  y es -  wa n ted  by  t he  G e ne ra l .  

M R  M XO L I S I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A :      Yes .  

C HA IR PER SO N :    He  d i d  n o t  m e n t io n  w h o  t he  G e ner a l  w as  is  

t ha t… ( i n te rv en t io n ) .  

M R  M XO L I S I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A :      N o .  

C HA IR PER SO N :    Yes  a n d  th a t  h e  wa s  p r es en t  a ls o  –  o r  th a t  t he  10 

Ch a i r pe r so n  o f  th e  Ta x i  Ass oc ia t io n  to o k  i t  t o  m e e t  w i th  t h e  G en er a l  

an d  t ha t  h e  w as  p r es e n t  w h e n  h e  m e t  w i t h  t h e  G en er a l  o r  t h a t  d id n ’ t  

co m e  ou t  c l ea r ly ?  

M R  M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A:      I t  d i dn ’ t  c o m e o u t  c le a r  

bu t  I  th in k  h e  wa s  i n  t h e  v eh ic le  as  th e  V IP  p ro tec t io n .  

C HA IR PER SO N :    Yes  b u t  a ls o  h e  d i dn ’ t  s ay  wh o  th e  G en er a l  w as ?  

M R  M XO L I S I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A :      Yes .  

C HA IR PER SO N :    A r e  t h os e  t h e  o n l y  tw o  d oc u m e nts  t h ey  p r od uc e d?  

M R  M XO L I S I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A :      A t  t he  t i m e  y es .  

C HA IR PER SO N :    An d  th ey  d i d  t ha t  i n  th a t  m e e t i ng ?  20 

M R  M XO L I S I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A :      I n  th a t  m e e t i ng .  

C HA IR PER SO N :    I n  M s  J i b a ’s  p r e se nc e ?  

M R  M XO L I S I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A :      I n  M s  J i b a ’s  p r es e nc e .  

C HA IR PER SO N :    An d  Ms  J ib a  d i dn ’ t  po i n t  t o  a ny th i ng  e ls e  sh e  m ig h t  

ha ve  b ee n  to l d  o r  s h o wn  in  r e ga rd  t o  w h a t  ev i d e nc e  t h e r e  w as .  
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M R  M XO L I S I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A :      N o .  

C HA IR PER SO N :     Ok ay  th a nk  y o u .      

M R  M XO L I S I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A :    Pe rh a ps  C ha i r ,  th a t  i s  wh y  

i f  I  f o l l ow  t he  m a t te r,  I  t h i nk  w he n  i t  c a m e  b e fo re  y o u ,  i f  I ’ m  n o t  

m is tak e n ,  I  th i nk  th a t  i s  w hy  th e n  s ub se qu e n t  I  h ear d  t ha t  Adv oc a te  

Sh a un  Abr a h a ms  re - i ns ta te d  th e  ch ar g es ,  bu t  I  u nd er s ta n d  th a t  pe o p l e  

we re  s e n t  t o  Gr e ec e  t o  o b ta i n  a  s ta te m e n t ,  a ga in  I ’ m  to l d  t h a t ,  t ha t  

s t a te m e n t  i s  w r i t te n  i n  Gr e ec e  a n d  i t  w as  t ra ns l a ted  by  s o m e o ne  h ere .  

C HA IR PER SO N :    N o  I  t h i nk  i t ’s  i m p or ta n t  t h a t ,  w h i l e  y o u  a r e  h e re ,  w e  

ge t  a s  m uc h  e v i de nc e  as  y o u  ha ve  t o  i nq u i r e  i n t o  t h es e  t h i ng s  –  t he se  10 

m a t te rs  b ec a us e  i t ’ s  qu i te  a  s e r io u s  s u gg e s t io n  o r  a l le g a t i on  wh e n  i t  i s  

sa i d  th a t  t h e  N PA o r  c e r ta in  pe o p l e  w i th in  t he  N PA a b us e d  t he i r  p o we rs  

t o  c h ar ge  p e op l e  w ho  s ho u ld  –  a g a i ns t  wh o m  the r e  w as  no  e v i d en ce  

an d  t ha t  t he y  w er e  m o t iv a te d  by  c e r t a i n  i l l e g i t i m a te  c o ns id e r a t i o ns  

be ca us e  i f  th e r e  is  no  ev i d e nc e  t o  su p p or t  t h os e  a l l eg a t i o ns  a g a i ns t  

t ho se  p e o p l e  o r  a g a i ns t  t h e  N PA th en  le t  u s  k n o w bu t  i f  th e r e  is  

ev i d e nc e  t he n  l e t  us  k no w,  t he  n a t i o n  d e ser ve s  t o  k n ow  ex ac t l y  w ha t  

t he  p os i t i o n  i s  b ec au se  th e  N PA is  a  v e r y  i m p or ta n t  i ns t i t u t i o n  in  th e  

co un t r y  a n d  i n  t h e  f i gh t  ag a in s t  c r i m e  a nd  t he  n a t i on  n ee ds  t o  k no w  

ex ac t l y  wh a t  t h e  po s i t i o n  is  a n d  i f  t h e r e  a r e  pe o p l e  w ho  d i d  t ha t ,  w e  20 

m u s t  k n o w i f  t h e re  is  e v i d en ce  t ha t  s h ow s  t ha t  th a t ’s  w h a t  t h ey  d i d  a nd  

t he y  w i l l  co m e  b e fo re  t he  C o m m is s i o n ,  p u t  t h e i r  s i de  o f  t h e  s to ry  a n d  

t he  C o m m i ss io n  w i l l  m a k e  d ec i s i o ns  a nd  f in d i n gs  i n  du e  co ur se  a n d  i t  

wa s  i m p or ta n t  t h a t  s o m e b od y  l i ke  y o u  c o m e s  be fo r e  t h e  C o m m is s i o n  

be ca us e  y o u  we re  –  f o r  a  c e r ta in  p e r io d  o f  t i m e  occ u py in g  t h is  ve ry  
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i m po r ta n t  p os i t i o n  o f  N D PP a n d  y o u  l e f t  un d er  c e r t a i n  c i r c u m s ta nc es  

an d  in  t h e  p ub l i c  d o m a i n  th e r e  a r e  a l l  k in ds  o f  t h i ng s  th a t  a r e  s a i d  b u t  

a ls o  th e r e  a r e  j u dg e m e n t ,  C our t  j u d ge m e n ts  t h a t  h av e  d ea l t  w i t h  t h a t .   

I t ’ s  i m p or ta n t  t h a t  so m e b o dy  l i k e  y o u  c o m es  an d  t e l l s  th e  C o m m is s i o n  

ex ac t l y  w ha t  yo u  k no w a n d  wh a t  h ap p e n ed  wh i l e  yo u  w er e  N D PP so  

t ha t  t h e  Co m m i ss io n  ca n  h av e  as  f u l l  a  p ic tu re  as  p os s i b l e  b e fo r e ,  in  

du e  c o urs e ,  i t  m ak es  f i n d i n gs .  

M R  M XO L I S I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:      Ye s  I  a p pr ec ia te  th a t .   

S i r  –  C h a i r  ca n  I  m ak e  a ls o  t h is  o bs erv a t i on  b ec au se  –  s o  th a t  m y  

ev i d e nc e  h er e  is  n o t  t ak e n  o u t  o f  c o n tex t .  10 

C HA IR PER SO N :    Yes .  

M R  M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A :      I  ha ve n ’ t  s u gg es te d  t h a t  

t he r e  wa s  n o  ev i d en ce  a t  a l l  ag a in s t  G e n er a l  Bo oys e n ’s  c o - acc us e d .  

C HA IR PER SO N :    Yes ,  y es .  

M R  M XO L I S I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A :      T h a t  –  ju s t  t o  m ak e  t ha t  

on e  v e ry  c l ea r .  

C HA IR PER SO N :    Yes ,  y es .  

M R  M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A:      Yes  

be ca us e … ( i n te rv e n t i on ) .  

C HA IR PER SO N :    Bu t  yo u  a re  sa y i ng  w i t h  re gar d  t o  t h e …( i n te r ve n t i o n ) .  20 

M R  M XO L I S I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A:    To  t h e  r ack e te er in g  

ch ar ge  a ga in s t  Bo o ys en ,  Ch a i r  t h e r e  w as  n o t  a  s h r e d  o f  e v i d en ce .    

C HA IR PER SO N :    A r e  y o u  s ay i n g  an y th i n g  i n  r e ga rd  t o  a ny  o th e r  

ch ar ge s  I  c a n ’ t  r e m e m b er  wh e ther  t ha t  wa s  t h e  o n ly  c ha rg e  h e  wa s  

f ac i n g ,  a re  yo u  sa y i ng  a ny th i n g  a b o u t  a ny  o th e r  ch ar g es  he  m a y  h av e  
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be e n  f ac i ng  o th e r  th a n  t h e  ra ck e te er i n g  c h ar ge ,  I  j us t  ca n ’ t  r e m e m b er  i f  

i t  w as  j us t  r ack e tee r i ng  ch ar g es .  

M R  M X O L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A:      Be ca us e  i n  th e  m a i n  

Ch a i r,  p e r h ap s  ju s t  to  un p ack  t h is  m a t t e r  C ha i r ,  y o u  k n o w I  ev e n  

su gg es te d  C ha i r  t h a t  i f  I  w as  p r os ec u t i n g  t h a t  m a t t e r  o r  d i r ec t i n g  t ha t  

m a t t e r  I  w as  g o i ng  t o  –  I  s a i d  t o  th e m ,  y o u  c o u l d  h av e  a p pr oa ch e d  o ne  

o f  t h e  c o - acc us e d  an d  t u r n  h i m  a  20 4  w i t ne ss  b ec au se  m o s t  o f  t h e  

ev i d e nc e  I  sa id  t o  th e m ,  yo u  k n ow,  I ’ m  b a se d  i n  D ur b an  a n d  co m e  f ro m  

Du rb a n  a nd  a l l  t ha t  y o u  a r e  t e l l i n g  m e  h er e  is  w h a t  i s  i n  t he  pu b l ic  

do m a i n  i n  D ur ba n .   We  he ar  a  lo t  o f  th i n gs  a b ou t  Ca to  M an or  a t  t he  10 

t i m e  a n d  I  t o l d  t h e m  th a t  w e  w o u l d  h ear  t ha t  w h en  t h e  m e m b e rs  o f  t he  

Ca to  M a n or  Un i t  h a d  k i l le d  a  p e r so n ,  th e y  w o u l d  p l an t  a  f i r e a r m  a n d  

t he n  G e ne ra l  Bo oys e n  wo u l d  co m e  a n d  t a ke  ov er  t he  sc e ne ,  so  t o  sa y.   

T ho se  w er e  t h e  a l l eg a t i o ns  bu t  t he n  I  s a i d  to  t he m ,  t h es e  a r e  j us t  

a l le g a t i on s  a n d  w i t h ou t  t he  ev i d e nc e  in  th e  do ck e t  y o u  c an n o t  

p r os ec u te  b ec au se  w e  do n ’ t  p r os ec u te  w i t h  e m o t i on s  a n d  I  te l l  yo u  t h is  

i s  w h a t  I  w ou l d  a l so  he ar  ab o u t  t he  Ca to  M an or  Un i t  a nd  Ch a i r,  th e r e  

wa s  a l so  ev i d en ce  a ls o ,  in  th e  –  t h e r e  w er e  a l le g a t i o ns ,  n o t  ev i d en ce  i n  

t he  d ock e t  t ha t  o ne  m e m b e r  o f  t h e  Ca to  M a n or  Un i t  s h o t  a n d  k i l l e d  a  

t ee n ag er  a t ,  I  th in k ,  Em p a n ge n i  ( in d is t i nc t )  w h en  th ey  we re  l o ok i n g  f o r  20 

a  su sp ec t ,  I  do n ’ t  k n o w w he th er  t h e  su sp e c t  wa s   r e l a te d  to  th is  y ou n g  

m a n  bu t  I  t h in k  th ey  re ck l es s l y  o p e ne d  f i r e  a n d  k i l le d  a n  i n no ce n t  

yo un g  m a n .   T h a t ’s  a  s i m p l e  in v es t i g a t i on ,  I ’ ve  ne ver  b ee n  a n  

inv es t i ga to r  i n  m y  l i f e  b u t ,  I  m e an  y o u  ca n  t ak e  –  c o l le c t  ev id e nc e ,  

m a tc h  c a r t r id g es ,  s p en t  c a r t r id g es ,  ta k e  t h e  f i r e a r m s  f o r  b a l l i s t i c  
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ex a m in a t i o n  p ur po se s  an d  l i nk  th e  p ers o n  o r  e ve n  u se  th e  a d op t io n  o f  

co m m o n  p ur po se  t o  c h ar ge  w ho ev er,  th a t  i s  wh y  I  p o i n ted  o u t   t o  t he m  

tha t  th ey  m u s tn ’ t  g e t  ca r r i ed  a wa y  w i th  t h is  ra ck e te er in g  c ha rg e  bu t  o f  

pa r t i c u l a r  i m po r ta nc e  wh ic h  I  b r o ug h t  to  t h e i r  a t te n t i o n  t h a t ,  i f  y ou  w an t  

t o  c har g e  a  p e r so n  w i t h  r ack e teer i ng  yo u  ha ve  t o  p r ov e  th a t  th e r e  ha s  

be e n  a  p a t t e rn  an d  th is  p a t t e rn  ha s  b e en  co n t i nu o us ly  h a pp e n i n g  f o r   a  

pa r t i c u l a r  pe r i od  a nd  I  s a i d ,  i f  th ey  wa n t  t o  a l l eg e  th a t  C a to  M a n or  as  

t he  u n i t  w h ic h  w as  b as ed  a t  C a to  M a n or,  C h a i r  k n ow s  w h er e  C a to  

M a n or  i s ,  i n  Du rb a n ,  an d  my  d i f f i c u l ty  w as  t h a t  a t  t he  t i m e  G en er a l  

Bo oys e n  w as  no t  ev en  a  m e m b e r  o f  t h a t  u n i t  b ec a us e  h e  w as  t he  he a d  10 

o f  t he  H aw ks  i n  D ur b an  ba se d ,  t h e  n o w ca l l ed  ( in d is t i nc t )  bu i l d i n g  i n  

Du rb a n  a nd  th e n  t o  a l le g e  t ha t  h e  w as  m an a g i n g  t he  e n te r p r i se  w h e n  

he  w as  ba se d  th e r e ,  t h ey  we re  n o t  g o i n g  t o  s ucc e ed .  

C HA IR PER SO N :    Ok ay  th a nk  y o u .  

A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR E TO R IU S  SC :    J us t  to  ex p l a i n  t he  r e fe re nc e  

yo u  m ad e  t o  Se c t i on  2 04 ,  Se c t i on  20 4  i s  a  Sec t i o n  o f  t he  Cr i mi n a l  

P ro ce d ur e  Ac t ,  I  u nd ers ta nd ,  t h a t  i s  u se d  to  e n ab l e  a  c o - acc us e d  to  

ass is t  t h e  p r os ec u t i o n  a n d  p erh a ps  r ec e ive  in d e m n i t y  in  t he  Co ur t ’s  

d is c r e t i on  as  a  re s u l t .  

M R  M XO L I S I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A :      Th a t  i s  co r re c t  C h a i r .  20 

A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR ET O R IU S  SC :    And  t ha t ’s  w ha t  y o u  w er e  

re fe r r i n g  t o .  

M R  M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A:      T h a t  i s  w ha t  I  wa s  

re fe r r i n g  t o .  

A D V PAU L J O SE PH  PR ETO R IU S  SC :    Ear l i e r  as  ha v i n g  b ee n  a s  s te p  
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t ha t  c o u l d  a n d  p er h ap s  sh o u l d  ha ve  be e n  t ak en .  

M R  M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A:      Th a t  i s  c o r r ec t  C h a i r ,  

t ha t  i s  w h a t  I  w as  s ug g es t i n g .  

A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR E TO R IU S  SC :    T he  t i m e  a t  w h ic h  y o u  t o ok  

o f f i c e ,  O c to b er  20 1 3  w as  a  t i m e  w h e n  th e  f o r m er  P r es id e n t  Z u m a  wa s  

s t i l l  b e i n g  i nv es t i g a te d ,  i s  t ha t  c o r re c t?  

M R  M XO L I S I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A :      Th a t  i s  co r re c t  C h a i r  

A D V PA U L J O SE PH  PR ETO R IU S  SC :    Wer e  y ou  b r i e fe d  on  t h e  s ta tus  

o f  t h a t  in ve s t i ga t i on ?  

M R  M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A:      No t  a t  a l l  Ch a i r,  i n  fa c t  10 

Ch a i r  I ’ ve  n ev er  ev e n  to uc h ed  t h e  do cke t  re la t in g  t o  th e  f o r m er  

P re s i de n t  Ja co b  Z u m a .   I  u n der s ta n d  th a t  t he  d oc ke t  w as  s t i l l  i n  t h e  

po ss ess i on  o f  Ad vo ca te  J i b a  a n d  Mr  H o fm e y r,  i f  I ’ m  n o t  m is tak en .  

A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR E TO R IU S  SC :    A l r i gh t .  

C HA IR PER SO N :      Was  –  is  i t  c o r r ec t  th a t  t h e  i nv es t i ga t io n  wa s  s t i l l  

go i ng  on  a t  t h a t  t i m e  b ec au se  r e m e m be r  in  2 00 9  c ha rg es  we re  

w i t hd ra w n ,  d i d  th e  in ve s t i ga t io n  co n t i nu e  a f te r  th ey  h a d  b e en  

w i t hd ra w n ?  

M R  M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:      C ha i r  m y  r e sp o ns e  f o r  

t he  q u es t i o n  o f  th e  i nv es t i g a t i on ,  I  u n de rs ta nd  q u i t e  c l e a r l y  th a t  t h e  20 

i nv es t i ga t io ns  ha d  c ea se d  t o  –  by  th e n  b u t  I  un d ers ta nd  th a t  th e  m a t t e r  

wa s  p r e t ty  m u c h  v e r y  a l i ve  b ec a us e  th e r e  w ere  c ha l l e ng es  a t  t h e  t i m e .   

T he n  m y  r es p on se  is  i n  r e ga rd  t o  th a t ,  t ha t  t he r e  w er e  p e op l e  s t i l l  

ch a l le n g i n g  t h e  d ec is i o n  to  w i t h d ra w  ch ar ge s  a g a i ns t  th e  fo r m e r  

P re s i de n t  J ac o b  Z u m a .  
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C HA IR PER SO N :    So  in  o th e r  w or ds  y o u  a re  n o t  n ec es sar i l y  s ay i n g  

t he r e  we re  in ve s t i ga to rs  w h o  w er e  s t i l l  c o n t i nu i ng  t o  

inv es t i ga te … ( i n te r ve n t i o n ) .  

M R  M XO L I S I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A :      N o ,  n o .  

C HA IR PER SO N :    T ha t  y o u  d o  n o t  k no w ?  

M R  M XO L I S I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A :      N o  I ’ m  n o t  –  I  do n ’ t  k n o w  

Ch a i r.  

C HA IR PER SO N :    J a  yo u  s i m p l y  k no w  th a t  th e  m a t te r …( i n te r ve n t i o n ) .  

M R  M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A:      Th er e  w er e  C ou r t  

ch a l le n ge s .  10 

C HA IR PER SO N :    T he re  w er e  C ou r t  c ha l l e ng es  r e l a t i ng  t o  t h e  d r op p i n g  

o f  t h e  ch ar g es .  

M R  M XO L I S I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A :      Th a t  i s  co r re c t  C h a i r .  

C HA IR PER SO N :    Ok ay.  

A D V PA U L J O SE PH  PR ETO R IU S  SC:    Ye s  p er h ap s  m y  qu es t io n  sh o u l d  

ha ve  b ee n  r e - ph ra se d  to  m o re  acc ur a te ly  re f le c t  w ha t  y o u  s ay  i n  

pa ra gr a ph  2 9  Mr  Nx as an a  w h en  y o u  sa y  yo u  w er e  no t  b r i e fe d  o n  t h e  

s ta tu s  o f  th e  in ve s t i ga t io n  ra th e r  on  w h e th er  t he  i nv es t i g a t i o n  i ts e l f  w as  

co n t i nu i ng .  

M R  M XO L I S I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A :    T ha t  i s  c o r r ec t .    20 

A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR E TO R IU S  SC :    R ig h t  i f  we  ca n  m ov e  on  t h en  

p l e as e  t o  t he  e ve n ts  le a d i n g  u p  t o  y ou r  o wn  s us pe ns io n .   D ur i n g  y ou r  

f i r s t  y e ar  in  o f f i c e ,  i t  w as  n o t  m uc h  m o re  t ha n  a  f i r s t  ye ar  i n  o f f i c e ,  bu t  

du r i ng  t h a t  y ear ,  d i d  y o u  l e a r n  a n y th in g  a bo u t  t he  a t t i t ud e  t ow ar ds  yo u  

an d  t h e  c on d uc t  t ow ar ds  y ou  o n  t he  p ar t  o f  Ad vo ca tes  J i m a  a n d  
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M g w eb i ,  t h a t ’s  L a ure nc e  M g w eb i  a n d  N o m g co bo  J i ba ?  

M R  M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:      Ye s  C h a i r ,  C h a i r  as  I  

po i n te d  o u t  t h a t  I  wa s  a p po in te d  o n  t h e  3 1 s t  o f  Aug us t  20 1 3  w i th  e f fe c t  

f r o m  th e  1 s t  o f  O c to b er  20 1 3 .   In  a  se ns e  i t  m e a ns  t ha t  I  h ad  t h i s  wh o l e  

m o n th  o f  Se p te m b er  s t i l l  i n  D ur b an  t o  w ra p  u p  b e fo r e  I  t oo k  o f f i c e .   

Ch a i r  I  s t a r t ed  t o  l ea rn  t h a t  du r i ng  t h a t  p e r i o d  o f  Se p te m b er,  b ec au se  

t he  a nn o un ce m e n t  w as  m a de  by  t h e  Pr es i de n t  th a t ,  th e r e  we re  p eo p l e  

t ha t  we re  r u nn in g  a r ou n d ,  d r iv i n g  a r o u nd  i n  t h e  t o w ns h i p  w h er e  I  g r ew  

up  f ro m  th a t  i s  U m la z i  in  m y  a r e a  an d  t ha t  th e se  p eo p le ,  m a ny  p e op l e  

we re  s to pp in g  pe o p l e ,  as k i ng  t he m  a b ou t  m e ,  a b ou t  m y  h is to ry  10 

es pe c i a l l y  a bo u t  m y  i nv o l ve m e n t  in  a  m a t t e r  t h a t  w as  p ub l i c is e d  o f  

m ur d er  a r o un d  1 9 85 .   I t  d id n ’ t  p uz z l e  m e  a t  f i r s t  b ec au se  I  t ho u gh t  th a t  

i t  w a s  pa r t  o f  th e  ve t t in g  p r oc es s  bu t  th i s  th in g  g a i n e d  i t s  m o m e n tu m  

un t i l  I  g o t  to  t h e  o f f i c e .   I  th e n  l ea rn t  t he re  wer e  m e m b er s  w i t h in  N PA 

wh o  w er e  v e ry  m uc h  re sp o ns i b le  a ls o  f o r  th a t .   I  t he n  s ub se q ue n t l y  

rec e i ve d  u ns o l i c i t ed  s ta te m e n t  i n  th e  f o r m  o f  a n  a f f i da v i t  f r o m  o ne  

m e m b er  o f  t h e  N PA b y  th e  n a m e  o f  Te r r en ce  J ou b er t  w o  wa s ,  a t  t h e  

t i m e ,  I  d on ’ t  k no w  i f  h e  s t i l l  i s ,  a  r i s k  s p ec ia l i s t  a t  N PA h e  w as  b as e d  i n  

Du rb a n .   He  s en t  m e  a n  e m a i l  a n d  i n  t he  e m a i l  t h e re  w as  a n  a f f i d av i t  

t ha t  a f f i d av i t  f o r m s  p ar t  o f  th e  b un d le  h e r e  wh er e  h e  th e n  –  wh er e  h e  20 

wa s  ba s i ca l l y  t e l l in g  m e  t h a t  t he re  w as  a  ca m p a ig n  by  Ad vo c a te  J i b a  

t ha t  –  to  d i g  t h e  d i r t  ab o u t  m e  s o  t h a t  th e  i n te n t i o n ,  t he  wh o l e  p u r p os e  

wa s  t o  e m b ar r ass  m e  so  t ha t  t he  P re s i d en t  w i l l  th e n  re m o v e  m e  a s  t h e  

Na t io n a l  D i r ec to r  o f  Pu b l ic  P ro se cu t io ns  an d  s h e  w ou l d  t h en  s ta nd  a  

ch an ce  o f  b e i ng  c o ns id e r e d  t o  e i t h e r  c on t i nu e  to  ac t  o r  to  be  ap p o i n ted  
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pe r m an e n t ly,  i t  i s  t h e re  b u t  i t  a ls o  –  th is  a f f i d av i t  –  i n  th is  a f f i d av i t  h e  

a ls o  s ta tes  t ha t  t h e r e  w er e  p o l i c e  –  tw o  po l i ce  m e m b e rs  t ha t  w er e  

ass ig n e d  t o  t h e  D PP,  th a t ’s  D e pu ty  –  D i re c to r  o f  Pr os ec u t i o ns  i n  KZ N ,  

Adv oc a te  N ok o  w ho  w as  s ta t i o ne d  t he re  a t  h is  o f f i c e  w h o  h a d  r ec e iv e d  

ve h ic l es  f ro m  th e  p r ov in c i a l  o f f i c e  a t  th e  t i m e  t h e  C o m m is s i o ner  w as  –  

Co m m i s s i on er  M m a m o n n ye  N go b e n i  an d  t ha t  th os e  pe o p l e  th a t  wer e  

t he r e ,  t h os e  tw o  ge n t l e m e n  t h ey  w er e  t h en  ta sk ed  w i t h  g o i n g  a r ou n d  

f i n d i n g  a ny  d i r t  a b ou t  m e  b u t  h e  a ls o  w en t  as  f a r  as  r ec or d i ng  t h is  

Co l on e l  M a h l o ng o .   Yes te r d ay  I  t r i ed  t o  ge t  t h is  r ec or d i n g ,  I  o n ly  

m a n ag e d  t o  g e t  i t  ve ry  l a te  be ca us e  i t  h ap p e ne d  i n  –  I  t h i nk  20 1 3  o r  10 

20 1 4  w he re  b as ic a l l y  I  c ou l d  he ar  th e  vo i ce  o f  C o l o ne l  M a h lo n go  an d  

Ter re nc e  J ou b er t ,  Jo u b er t  w as  p l ay i n g  a l on g .   H e  d id  n o t  –  C o lo n e l  

M h lo n go  d i d  n o t  k n ow  tha t  h e  w as  r ec or d i n g  h i m .   H e  w as  b as ic a l l y  

say in g  t ha t  J ib a  ha d  m a n da ted  h i m  to  g o  ab o u t  d ig g in g  d i r t  ab o u t  m e .   

T he y  we n t  so  f a r  as  t o  t h a t  r ec or d i ng  say in g  t h a t  I  th i nk  Te re nc e  

Jo ub er t  ha d  u n d er ta ke n  to  ho ok  h i m  u p  w i t h  p eo p le  f r o m  the  Ro a d  

Acc id e n t  F u n d  b ec au se  t h e  a l l eg a t i o n  w as  t h a t  b e ca us e  I  w as  

p r ac t i s i ng  as  a n  a t t o r n ey  t h ey  w er e  a l l eg i ng  th a t  I  h a d  e m b ezz le d  

c l i e n t s  m o n i es  w he n  I  h an d l e d  th e  R oa d  Acc i de n t  F u nd  c l a i m s  a nd  a l so  

I  do  n o t  k n o w  h o w  the y  go t  i t  f r o m  a nd  i t  i s  t r ue  t h a t  m y  w i f e  a t  s o m e  20 

s ta ge  w as  a ls o  –  w as  e m p lo ye d  a t  t h e  –  a t  t h e  R o ad  Acc id e n t  F u n d  

o f f i c e  i n  Dur b a n .   A l l  o f  t ha t  i t  i s  th e r e  t h a t  m y  w i f e  w as  a l so  e m p l oy ed  

t he r e  an d  t h a t  Ter en ce  J o u ber t  wa s  g o i ng  t o  h oo k  h i m  u p  w i t h  t h e  

ge n t l e m a n  a t  Ro a d  Ac c i d en t  F u nd  s o  t ha t  t he y  c o u l d  g i ve  t h e m  

ev i d e nc e  i m p l ic a t i n g  m e  i n  a l l  o f  th a t .   T he y  a ls o  r e fe r  in  t he  m u rd er  
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ch ar ge  t ha t  Ter e nc e  J ou b er t  co u ld  he ar  h i m  sa y i n g  t h a t  t ha t  m ur d er  

ch ar ge  t h a t  yo u  h av e  i n  y ou r  p os i t i o n  re fe r r i ng  t o  Co lo n e l  M h l on g o  th a t  

wa s  –  i t  i s  th e r e  –  i t  i s  t he re  I  ha ve  i t  in  t h e  re co rd  h ere .  

A D V PA U L J O SE PH  PR E TO R IU S  SC :   Be ca us e  t he se  a r e  se r i ou s  

a l le g a t i on s  p erh a ps  w e  sh o u l d  d o  y o u  t he  fa vo ur  o f  a l l o w i ng  to  g o  

t h ro u g h  y o ur  ev id e nc e  in  t h e  se q ue nc e  yo u  s e t t l e d  i t  i n  yo ur  s ta te m e n t .   

Yo u  ta lk e d  a b ou t  pe o p l e  i n  U ml az i  i n f o r m in g  y ou .  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   T ha t  i s …  

A D V PA U L J O SE PH  PR ET O R IU S  SC :   Th is  w as  be fo r e  y o ur  

ap p o i n tm e n t  ac tu a l l y  b ec a m e  c o n f i r m e d  o r …  10 

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   I t  w as  c on f i r m e d .  

A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR E TO R IU S  SC :   Be fo r e  yo u  t oo k  o f f i c e .  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   Ye s ,  ye s .  

A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR E TO R IU S  SC :   A f t e r  i ts  co n f i r m a t i on  b u t  b e fo re  

yo u  to ok  o f f i c e  t r y i n g  to  as  y ou  p u t  i t  d i g  u p  in fo r m a t io n  ab o u t  y o ur  

pa s t .  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   T ha t  i s  c o r r ec t  C h a i r .  

A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR ET O R IU S  SC :   T h a t  i s  th e  on e  s e t  o f  fa c ts  t h a t  

yo u  p la ce  b e fo r e  th e  Ch a i r.  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   T ha t  i s  c o r r ec t .  20 

A D V PA U L J O SE PH  PR ET O R IU S  SC :   You  a ls o  m e n t i on e d  ea r l ie r  i n  

yo ur  e v i d en ce  t he  a pp ro ac h  to  y o u  o f  two  N PA o f f i c i a l s .  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   Ye s  C h a i r .  

A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR ET O R IU S  SC :   No w  wh a t  d i d  t h ey  te l l  y o u ?   

T ha t  i s  i n  p a r a gr ap h  33  o f  yo ur  s t a te m en t .  
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A D V M X O L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A:   T h a t  i s  t h e  o ne  th a t  I  a m  

re fe r r i n g  t o .   T h a t  a pp ro ac h  I  m e a n t  t h e  –  t h e  a f f i d av i t  t ha t  I  r e ce iv e d  

f r o m  M r  Ter e nc e  Jo u b er t .  

A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR E TO R IU S  SC :   An d  th e  o th e r  pe r so n ?  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A:   T h e  o the r  p e rs o n  wa s  M s  

Q u ee n  M l o ng o  w h o  w as  s ta t i o ne d  a t  t h e  –  t h e  N PA o f f i c es  a t t ac he d  t o  

t he  Ass e t  F or f e i t u r e  U n i t  i n  Du rb a n .  

A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR E TO R IU S  SC :   W h a t  d id  s h e  t e l l  y o u?  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   She  t o l d  m e  t h a t  C o l o ne l  

M g lo n go  w as  b r a g g i ng  s ay i ng  t ha t  –  in  fa c t  s h e  a l so  ha d  r ec or de d  h i m  10 

un fo r t un a te ly  w e  h av e  l os t  t he  p ho n es  n ow  a nd  t h e  re co rd in gs  b u t  I  

l i s t en e d  t o  t h e  r ec or d i n g  m ys e l f .   An d  i n  t h a t  r ec or d i n g  he  wa s  b r ag g in g  

t ha t  h e  c la i m e d  t o  k no w  m e  v ery  w e l l  an d  he  m a d e  a  l o t  o f  fa ls e  

a l le g a t i on s  ab o u t  m e  in  t h a t  r ec or d i n g  bu t  o f  i m p o r ta nc e  i s  t ha t  h e  wa s  

say in g  t h a t  h e  ha d  be e n  p r o mi se d  t he  a p p o i n tm e nt  o f  t he  B r i g a d i e r  –  h e  

wa s  ac cu s i ng  m e  o f  wa n t i n g  t o  ch ar g e  G e ne ra l  M d l u l i  a nd  th a t  G e n era l  

M d lu l i  i f  he  is  n o t  c h arg e d  G e ner a l  M d l u l i  wa s  go i ng  t o  m a ke  su re  t h a t  

he  is  ap p o i n te d  as  th e  –  h e  w as  g o i n g  t o  b e  p r o m o te d  as  t he  B r i g ad i e r.  

A D V PA U L J O S EPH  PR ETO R IU S  SC :   Le t  u s  j us t  t ak e  t h a t  s l o w l y  

be ca us e  t ha t  i s  a  lo t  o f  in f o r m a t io n .  20 

C HA IR PER SO N :   M a y be  b e fo r e  y o u  p r oc e ed  Mr  Pr e to r i us  j us t  o n e  l i ne .   

A t  t h e  t i m e  g o i ng  b ac k  to  M r  J o ub er t ’s  a f f i d av i t  –  a t  th e  t i m e  y ou  g o t  

t ha t  a f f i da v i t  wa s  Mr  J o ub er t  k n ow n  to  yo u ?  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA S A NA:   C h a i r  n o  he  w as  n o t  

kn ow n  to  m e .  
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C HA IR PER SO N :   So  y ou  r ec e i ve d  a n  a f f id av i t  f r o m  so m e b o dy  th a t  y o u  

ha d  ne ve r  m e t ,  t ha t  y o u  d id  n o t  kn o w ?  

A D V M XO L I S I  SA N D IL E  O L I VER  N XA SA N A:   Yes  b u t  h e  is  a n  

e m p l oy e e  o f  t he  N PA .  

C HA IR PER SO N :   Ye s .  

A D V M X O L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A:   An d  m y  d e ta i l s  a r e  t he r e  

f o r  t h e m .  

C HA IR PER SO N :   Ye s .   Ok ay.  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A:   Be ca us e  I  re ce iv e d  o n  

t he  …  10 

C HA IR PER SO N :   O n  t he  e m a i l .  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   O f f i c i a l  N PA e m a i l .  

C HA IR PER SO N :   O ka y,  Th a nk  y o u .  

A D V PA U L J O SE PH  PR ETO R IU S  SC :   R ig h t .   So  y ou  ha ve  s a i d  i n  y ou r  

s t a te m e n t  t h a t  a l m o s t  i m m e d ia te l y  a f t e r  yo u  w er e  ap p o i n ted  tw o  N PA 

o f f i c i a ls  a pp ro ac h ed  yo u .   We  w i l l  d ea l  w i t h  M r  J ou b er t  i n  a  m o m e nt .   

T he  o the r  p e rs o n  h o w d o  y ou  s p e l l  h e r  na m e ?  

A D V M X O L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA NA:   I t  i s  Q u ee n .  Q u e en  

M h lo n go .   M h lo n go  i t  i s  M h lo n g o .  

A D V PA U L J O SE PH  PR E TO R IU S  SC :   N go .   R i gh t .   D i d  sh e  t e l l  y o u  20 

an y th in g  ab o u t  Ad vo ca tes  J i ba  an d  M w e be ?  

A D V M XO L I S I  SA N D IL E  O L I VER  N XA SA N A:   C h a i r  e xc ep t  t h a t  –  I  j us t  

se e  i f  I  ca n  r e f r es h  m y  m e m o ry.    

A D V PA U L J O SE PH  PR ETO R IU S  SC :   Ye s  p le as e  d o .   L oo k  a t  

pa ra gr a ph  3 3  o f  y ou r  s ta te m e n t .    
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A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A:   Ye s ,  Ye s  C ha i r  th is  i s  –  

t ha t  i s  t he  –  t h e  ev i d en ce  t h a t  I  ha ve  j us t  g iv e n  t ha t  p a r agr a p h  3 3  t a l ks  

t o  th a t  a bo u t  t he  p l o t  to  o us t  m e .   T h a t  C o l o ne l  M h lo n g o  wa s  t he  m a i n  

pe rs on  t ha t  w as  u se d  by  Adv oc a te  J i ba  t o  r un  t he  co m p a ig n .  

A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR E TO R IU S  SC :   An d  Adv oc a te  M w e be ?  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   Bo th  o f  t h e m  C ha i r.  

C HA IR PER SO N :   H m  y ou  t a lk  a bo u t  two  o f f i c i a l s  o f  t h e  N PA o n e  o f  

t he m  I  u nd er s ta nd  t o  h av e  be e n  Mr  J o u ber t .  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   Ye s .  

C HA IR PER SO N :   T ha t  y ou  a r e  t a lk i ng  ab ou t .   Was  t h e  o th e r  o n e  t h e  10 

pe rs on  t ha t  y o u  re fe r  t o  as  Q u e en  M h lo g o ?  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   T ha t  i s  c o r r ec t  C h a i r .  

C HA IR PER SO N :   O ka y.  

A D V M XO L I S I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA S A NA:   Sh e  w a s  –  s h e  wa s  

a t t ac h ed  to  th e  Ass e t  F or f e i t u r e  Un i t  b as e d  in  D ur b an  a t  th e  t i m e .  Bu t  

sh e  is  n o  l on g er  w i th  t h e  N PA .   Sh e  is  th e  p r i va te …  

C HA IR PER SO N :   O ka y.   T h a nk  y o u .  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   Sec to r  n o w.  

A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR E TO R IU S  SC :   D i d  t h ey  ap pr o ac h  y ou  t o ge th er  

as  a  t e a m  or  d i d  t h ey  a p pr oa ch  yo u  s e par a te ly ?  20 

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   N o  i nd e pe n d en t  o f  e ac h  

o th e r  Ch a i r.  

A D V PA U L J O SE PH  PR E TO R IU S  SC :   Th es e  w er e  tw o  se p ar a te  

in d ep e nd e n t…  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   Sep ar a te  i nc i d en t s .  
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A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR E TO R IU S  SC :   Ap p ro ac he s  t o  y o u?  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   Ye s .  

A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR E TO R IU S  SC :   R ig h t .  

C HA IR PER SO N :   A ro u nd  a bo u t  th e  s a m e  t i m e ?  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A:   Ar o un d  ab o u t  t he  s a m e  

t i m e  C ha i r .  

C HA IR PER SO N :   H m .  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   Ye s .  

C HA IR PER SO N :   D ur i ng  t h e  m o n th  o f  Se p te m b er  b e fo re  yo u  –  no ,  n o  

a f t e r  y o u  h a d  c o m m e nc e d  y our  d u t i es  as  N D PP?  10 

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A:   Ye s  a f t e r  I  h ad  

co m m e n ce d  m y  d u t i es  y es .  

C HA IR PER SO N :   O ka y  j a .  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   An d  C ha i r  I  t h in k  I  m u s t  

a ls o  m e n t i o n  t h a t  b o th  –  I  t h i nk  t he y  w e re  –  Te r en ce  J o u ber t  a nd  –  

a l t ho u g h  h e  wa s  a  R i sk  O f f i ce r  Spe c i a l i s t .   I  th in k  h is  o f f i ce  w as  a ls o  i n  

t he  s a m e  bu i l d i n g  a s  t h e  o f f i ce  w he re  –  o f  t h e  Ass e t  Fo r f e i t u r e  U n i t  o f  

t he  N PA in  D ur ba n .   T ha t  i s  t h e  …  

C HA IR PER SO N :   W h er e  Ms  Q u e en  M h lo n g o …  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   Ye s .  20 

C HA IR PER SO N :   Was  wo rk i n g  [ i nd is t i nc t ]  

A D V M XO L I S I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   Yes  i t  i s  –  y es  –  i t  –  a t  –  

i s  i t  1 8 5  Bu i ld i ng ,  So u th er n  L i fe  Bu i l d in g .  

C HA IR PER SO N :   H m .  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   Ye s .  
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A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR E TO R IU S  SC:   A l r ig h t .   T he se  ap pr o ac he s  t o  

yo u  a t  w h os e  in s ta nc e  w er e  t h ey  m a de ?   D i d  y ou  c a l l  o n  t h e m  to  s p ea k  

t o  yo u ?   D id  t he y  c o m e  o f  t he i r  o w n  a cc or d ?   W h a t  w as  t h e  ca se ?  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A:   No  Ch a i r  t he y  ca m e  o f  

t he i r  o w n  a cc or d .  

A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR E TO R IU S  SC :   An d  s e par a te ly ?  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   An d  s e pa ra te l y.  

A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR E TO R IU S  SC :   A l r i gh t .  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A:   I n  f ac t  Ch a i r  w h a t  I  ha ve  

no t  m e n t i o n ed  h er e  i n  th e  a f f i d av i t  i s  I  ha ve  re fe r r e d  e ar l i e r  t o  a n  10 

i nc i de n t  w he n  I  sa id  I  w a s  war m l y  we lc o m ed  a t  t h e  N PA a n d  d ur i ng  t h a t  

–  I  re fe r r e d  t o  a  –  t o  t h e  da y  w he n  M in is t e r  R ad a b e  c a m e  to  i n t r od uc e  

m e .   I  g av e  a  s pe ec h  a ls o  t h e re .   We  w er e  a t  t h e  au d i t o r i u m .   Ch a i r  I  

t he n  s a id  –  I  re m e m b e r  s ay in g  t h a t  M i n is t e r  I  a m  n o  –  N D PP h a s  ev er  

f i n i sh e d  h is  t e r m  o f  o f f i c e  a n d  I  c a n  a ss ur e  y o u  t h a t  I  w i l l  f i n is h  m y  t e r m  

o f  o f f i c e .   In  fa c t  th e  N PA Ac t  ev en  per m i t s  m e t o  t ak e  a n  ex t r a  p e r i o d  

o f  n o t  m or e  th a n  tw o  y e ars  an d  I  a m  s ur e  t h a t  I  w i l l  b e  h e r e  f o r  t h e  

pe r i od  o f  1 2  y e ars .   I  w as  s ay in g  th a t  i n  j e s t .   

C HA IR PER SO N :   Ye s .  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A:   Bu t  w ha t  th e n  h a pp e ne d  20 

i s  t ha t  l a t e r  o n  I  –  a  l ad y  wa s  t he n  se co nd e d  t o  m y  o f f i c e  a s  m y  

sec re ta ry  a n d  a t  a  ve ry  la t e  s ta ge  s he  t h e n  s a i d  t o  m e  t h a t  s h e  r e l a te d  

he r  s t o r y  t o  m e  t h a t  sh e  s a i d  s h e  w as  p re s en t  a t  t h e  –  w h e n  I  ga ve  t ha t  

–  a t  th a t  w e l co m i n g  e ve n t .   T h e n  sh e  s a i d  t h e r e  w as  a  g en t le m a n  s h e  

wa s  s ta n d i ng  by  t h e  d oo r  a nd  a  s ec o nd  g en t le m a n  i m m e d i a te ly  p as se d  
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a  co m m e n t  a f te r  I  m a de  t ho se  r e m ar ks  a nd  s a id  y o u  w i l l  b e  su rp r is e d  

t ha t  y o u  w i l l  n o t  ev e n  l as t  f o r  a  pe r i o d  o f  t h r ee  m o n ths .   As  we  

co n t i nu e d  w ork i n g  t og e ther  t h e n  i n  t he  o f f i ce  a nd  s he  t h en  h a pp e n ed  t o  

m e e t  a n d  k n ow  th a t  a p pa re n t l y  th a t  p e r so n  wh o  m a d e  t h os e  c o m m e n ts  

wa s  Mr  L awr e nc e  M w eb e .    

C HA IR PER SO N :   So  –  s o  t h i s  l ad y  w h o  w as  e m p l oy e d  by  t he  N PA sa i d  

a  p e rs o n  w h o  w as  s ta n d i ng  b eh i nd  her .  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   Ye s .  

C HA IR PER SO N :   A t…  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   Or  n ex t  t o  h e r .  10 

C HA IR PER SO N :   O h  ne x t  t o  h e r ?  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   Ye s .  

C HA IR PER SO N :   A t  t he  t i m e  w h en  yo u  m a de  t he  sp e ec h .  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   Ye s .  

C HA IR PER SO N :   A f t e r  be i ng  in t r o d uc ed  b y  M i n i s t e r  Je f f  R ad a be  a t  th e  

N PA to  t h e  N PA s ta f f .  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   Ye s .  

C HA IR PER SO N :   Sa i d  yo u  w i l l  b e  s u r p r i se d  th a t  y o u  w i l l  no t  ev e n  f i n i sh  

t h re e  m o n th s?  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   T ha t  i s  c o r r ec t  C h a i r .  20 

C HA IR PER SO N :   An d  th e n  t h a t  s a m e  l a dy  l a te r  c a m e  b ac k  t o  yo u  a n d  

sa i d  t ha t  pe rs on  w as  Mr  L aw re nc e  M w eb e ?  

A D V M XO L I S I  SA N D IL E O L IVER  N XA SA N A:   Ye s  wh e n  sh e  g o t  to  s e e  

h i m  w h en  w e  h a d  i n te r ac t io ns  w i t h  th e m  i n  m y  b o ar d r oo m .  

C HA IR PER SO N :   Ye s .   Ok ay.  
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A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A:   An d  s h e  i de n t i f ie d  h i m  as  

La wr e nc e  M w eb e .  

C HA IR PER SO N :   O ka y  t h a nk  y ou .  

A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR ET O R IU S  SC:   A l r ig h t .   Yo u  h av e  s p ok e n  t he n  

ab o u t  t h e  tw o  N PA o f f i c i a l s  w h o  a p pr o ac he d  y o ur  un so l i c i t ed  a nd  

se pa ra te l y?  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   Ye s .  

A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR E TO R IU S  SC :   W i t h  i n fo r m a t i on .  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   Ye s .  

A D V PA U L J O SE PH  PR E TO R IU S  SC :   Ab ou t  w h a t  o th e r  p eo p l e  i n  th e  10 

N PA w er e  d o i n g  t o  un se a t  y ou ?  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   Ye s .  

A D V PA U L J O SE PH  PR E TO R IU S  SC :   I s  t ha t  m o r e  o r  l es s  an  a cc ura te  

su m m a ry  I  do  n o t  w a n t  to  pu t  w or ds  i n  y o ur  m o u th  u nn ec es sa r i l y.   We  

a r e  g o i n g  t o  go  t o  t h e  d e ta i l  i n  a  m o m e n t .    

A D V M XO L I S I  SA N DIL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A:   Ja  b u t  a ga i n  a l so  C h a i r  

pe rh a ps  th is  m ig h t  a ls o  b ec o m e  r e l ev an t  I  –  a ls o  d ur i n g  t h e  –  j us t  to  go  

ba ck .   Du r i ng  t h e  –  t h a t  Se p te m b er  pe r i od  o f  20 1 3  wh e n  th e  

an n o un ce m e n t  ha d  b ee n  m a d e  be fo r e  I  t oo k  o f f i c e  I  r ec e i ve d  –  I  

re m e m b er  I  r ec e iv ed  a  c a l l  f r o m  Ad vo ca te  M d la d la  co m m o n l y  k no w n  as  20 

Adv oc a te  S the m b is o  M d la d l a  c o m m o n ly  kn ow n  as  S t ick s  M d l a d l a .   I  

kn ow  tha t  he  w as  t h e n  su bs e qu e n t ly  o ne  o f  t h e  m e m b ers  o f  t he  C ass i m  

Co m m i s s i on  o f  I n qu i r y  h e  w as  a ls o  a  m e m b er.   H e  ph o n ed  m e  i n  t h e  

m or n in g  an d  s a i d  t o  m e  a p pa re n t l y  h e  m ad e  m e n t i o n  o f  a  Mr  M w e b e.   

He  s a i d  h e  u n d ers tan d  M r  M w eb e  w a n te d  t o  s pe ak  to  m e  b ec a us e  h e  
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f ea r s  o r  he ar s  to ld  h i m  th a t  –  h e  h as  b ee n  t o l d  th a t  w he n  I  ca m e  to  N PA 

I  w i l l  de a l  w i th  h i m .   C h a i r  i t  to ok  m e  by  s u r p r is e  a s  I  p o i n te d  o u t  

ea r l ie r  o n  t h a t  I  d i d  n o t  e ve n  k n ow  h i m .  I  d id  no t  ev en  m e t  h i m  I  d i d  no t  

kn ow  a ny o ne  e xc ep t  t h e  p er so n  t ha t  I  la t e r  id e n t i f i e d  as  Adv oc a te  

P i nk i e  M ok g a t l e .    

C HA IR PER SO N :   T h e  i n fo r m a t i o n  t ha t  t he  l ad y  ga ve  y ou  a b ou t  t h e  

ge n t l e m a n  th a t  wa s  s ta n d i ng  n ex t  to  he r  w as  th a t  i n fo r m a t i o n  so l i c i t ed ?  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   N o  Ch a i r.  

C HA IR PER SO N :   H m .   O ka y.  

A D V PA U L J O SE PH  PR ETO R IU S  SC :   R ig h t .   Yo u  s a i d  t h a t  M r  Ter e nc e  10 

Jo ub er t  ga ve  yo u  a n  a f f i d av i t  t ha t  i s  p a r t  o f  th e  b u n d l e?  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   T ha t  i s  c o r r ec t  C h a i r .  

A D V PA U L J O SE PH  PR ETO R IU S  SC:   I n  su m m a ry  w h a t  d i d  M r  J o ub er t  

t e l l  yo u  i n  t h a t  a f f id av i t?   Or  wh a t  d i d  t h a t  a f f i da v i t  s ay ?   Yo u  d ea l  w i th  

t ha t  i n  pa ra gr ap h  36 .  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   I n  s u m m a ry  Ch a i r  

ap p ar en t ly  Ad v oc a te  J ib a  w as  go i ng  to  D ur ba n .   I  t h in k  i t  w as  o n  th e  

da y  th a t  I  m e t  h e r.   An d  t h e  p r o toc o l  i s  th a t  Te re nc e  Jo u be r t  a s  th e  R i sk  

O f f i c e r  Sp e c i a l i s t  i n  D ur ba n  i s  –  w as  r es p o ns i b le  f o r  se cu r i ty  an d  r i sk .  I  

t h i nk  h e  w as  t h e  h ea d  i n  Du rb a n .   H e  w a s  th e  o n e  wh o  w as  g o in g  t o  20 

f e t ch  Ad v oc a te  J ib a  f ro m  the  K i ng  Sh ak a  I n te r n a t i o na l  A i r po r t  an d  d r iv e  

t o  h e r  d es t in a t i o n .   Bu t  t he n  M r  Jo u be r t  s a ys  th a t  h e  th e n  s u bs eq u e n t ly  

wh e n  h e  h a d  m a d e  a r ra n g e m en ts  t o  g o  an d  fe tc h  Adv oc a te  J ib a  he  

rec e i ve d  a  p ho n e  ca l l  f r o m  the  Adv oc a te  J ib a ’s  s ec r e ta ry  ad v is i ng  h i m  

tha t  he  w as  no t  –  h e  wa s  n o  l o n ger  g o i n g  t o  b e  –  i t  w as  n o t  g o i n g  to  b e  
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h i m  w ho  wa s  go i ng  to  fe t ch  Ad v oc a te  J i b a  a nd  i t  w as  no w  g o i n g  t o  b e  

Co l on e l  M h l on g o .   And  t he n  h e  s a i d  h e  fo u nd  t ha t  v e ry  s t r a ng e  be ca us e  

he  t a lk s  a b ou t  t he  s ec ur i ty,  t h e  p r o toc o l  a nd  t he  se cur i ty  r i s k  a t t ac h ed  

t o  a l l  o f  t h a t .   An d  t h e n  h e  m a d e  m e n t i o n  o f  a  s i t u a t i on  wh er e  –  he  th e n  

m a d e  m e n t io n  o f  t h es e  tw o  p o l i c e  o f f i c e r s  t ha t  w ere  d ep l oy ed  t o  t h e  

D PP ’s  o ff i c e  in  D ur b an  Ad vo ca te  No ko  a n d  th a t  i s  w he n  he  c ha l l e ng e d  

t ha t  be ca us e  o f  t h e  s ec ur i t y  r i s k  a n d  th a t  t he y  w er e  n o t  v e t te d  

ap p ar en t ly  h is  bo ss  f r o m  th e  he a d  o f f i c e  a  Mr  R a m a ha n a  f le w  do w n  a n d  

ca m e  do w n  a n d  c as t i g a te d  h i m  fo r  t ha t .   T h en  h e  i n  t h i s  a f f id av i t  h e  

t he n  t a l ks  a b ou t  th e  –  th e  p lo t  n o w th a t  a pp ar e n t ly  J ib a  w as  r un n in g  a  10 

ca m p a i g n  t o  ge t  m e  r e m ov e d  a s  t he  –  h e  sa i d  t o  M h l on g o  –  o r  he  s a i d  

M h lo n go  t o l d  h i m  th a t  …  

A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR E TO R IU S  SC :   M h l on g o  t o ld  w ho ?  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A:   O h  s o r ry  M h l on g o  to l d  

Jo ub er t .  

A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR E TO R IU S  SC :   Yes .  

A D V M X O L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A:   T ha t  J i b a  sa i d  t o  h i m  –  

J ib a  d oe s  n o t  t ru s t  t h is  g uy  t h e  –  w ho  is  t h e  n e w  ND PP M r  Nx as an a  an d  

t ha t  M h l on g o  m us t  g o  o u t  an d  g e t  s o m e  –  an d  d i g  so m e  d i r t  ab o u t  h i m .   

So  th a t…  20 

A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR E TO R IU S  SC :   Th a t  i s  yo u ?  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   Ab o u t  m e?  

A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR E TO R IU S  SC :   Yes .  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   T he  w ho le  in t e n t i on  w as  

t o  e m b ar ra ss  m e  an d  t ha t  sh e  d i d  no t  k n o w  m e  bu t  t he  w h o l e  i n t en t io n  
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wa s  t o  e m b ar r ass  m e  s o  t ha t  t he  P re s i d e n t  w i l l  r e m o ve  m e  o r  w i l l  f i r e  

m e  as  th e  Na t io n a l  D i re c to r  an d  s h e  w i l l  t he n  b e  c o ns id e r ed  t o  e i th e r  

co n t i nu e  to  ac t  o r  t o  b e  c on s i d e re d  on  a  –  t o  b e  ap p o i n te d  on  a  

pe r m an e n t  b as is .  

A D V PA U L J O SE PH  PR ET O R IU S  SC :   S o  th e  a f f i d av i t  o f  M r  J o ub er t  

t a lk s  o f  a  co nv er sa t io n  be tw ee n  Co lo n e l  M h l o ng o  an d  Mr  Jo u be r t?  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   Ye s  t h a t  i s  c o r r ec t .  

A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR ETO R IU S  SC:   An d  r e l a te s  w h a t  w as  t o l d  t o  Mr  

Jo ub er t  i n  t ha t  c o nv ers a t i o n  by  C o l o ne l  M h lo n go ?  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   T ha t  i s  c o r r ec t .  10 

A D V PA U L J O SE PH  PR E TO R IU S  SC :   A nd  y ou  h av e  r e la te d  s o m e  o f  

t ha t?  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   Ye s .  

A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR E TO R IU S  SC :   Wa s  a ny th i ng  m e n t i o ne d  i n  t ha t  

co nv ers a t i o n  ac co rd i ng  t o  M r  J o ub er t  ab o u t  th e  Ro a d  Acc id e n t  F u n d?  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   T ha t  i s  c o r r ec t  C h a i r .    

A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR ETO R IU S  SC :   An d  y ou  h av e  –  is  t h a t  w h a t  y ou  

ha ve  ju s t  t o l d  th e  Ch a i r  a b ou t?  

A D V M XO L I S I  SA N D IL E O L IVER  N XA SA N A:   Th a t  i s  w h a t  I  h av e  j us t  

t o l d  t h e  C h a i r  an d  a ls o  th e  –  t h e  is su e  a b o u t  t h e  ca se s  t h a t  I  ha d  fa ce d  20 

i n  ab o u t  2 0 15 .  

A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR E TO R IU S  SC :   A l r i gh t .  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   Sor ry  1 98 5 .  

A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR ET O R IU S  SC:   And  wh a t  –  w as  a ny th i n g  sa i d  

ab o u t  t he  e xa m p l e  p r i o r  e xa m p l e  o f  M r  S ta n l e y  G u m e de  w o u l d  yo u  

Y10-WSM-162LEA-10-162

derickdb
Highlight

derickdb
Highlight

derickdb
Highlight

derickdb
Highlight

derickdb
Highlight

derickdb
Highlight



12 JUNE 2019 – DAY 111 
 

Page 82 of 136 
 

ex p l a i n  th a t  b r i e f l y  t o  th e  Ch a i r .  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IVER  N XA SA N A:   Oh  y es .   Ch a i r  ye s .   I n  

t ha t  a f f id av i t  a ls o  M r  Jo u be r t  r e fe r s  to  –  h e  s ay s  th a t  C o l o ne l  M h lo n g o  

a ls o  t o l d  h i m  th a t  Mr  S ta n l ey  G u m e d e  wh o  is  t he  R e g i o na l  M a g i s t ra te  in  

Du rb a n  w as  t he  per so n  w h o  w as  co ns id e r ed  f o r  th e  p os i t i on  b e fo re  

m ys e l f .   Bu t  th a t  Ad vo ca te  J i b a  ra n  t h e  c a m p a i gn  t o  d i sc r e d i t  h i m  an d  

on e  o f  t he  t h i n gs  i n  t h a t  a f f i d av i t  t ha t  wh ic h  Jo u b er t  a l l eg es  is  t h a t  J i b a  

o r  –  J i ba  t h en  –  th ey  c o nv in ce d  a  o n e  a dv oc a te  h e re  –  th ey  ca l l  h i m  

M a ko s i  i n  Du rb a n  t o  –  t o  c o m p la in  a bo u t  t h e  m an n er  i n  wh ic h  Mr  

G u m e de  h ad  t r ea te d  h er  i n  co ur t  a s  a  r es u l t  Mr  G u m e de  h ad  to  f ac e  a  10 

l o t  o f  co m p l a i n ts  an d  he  w as  in ve s t ig a te d  by  t he  M a g is t r a tes  

Co m m i s s i on .   T he  m a t te r  w a s  a l l  o ve r  t h e  m e d i a  an d  th e  Pr es id e n t  t h a t  

[ i n d is t in c t ]  t he  P re s i de n t  n o t  co ns i de r i ng  h i m  as  th e  c an d id a te .   T he n  

he  s ay s  t h a t  t he y  w er e  us in g  t h e  v e ry  s a m e tac t ic  t h a t  t he y  us e d  

ag a in s t  –  a n d  he  w as  r es po ns i b l e  M r  –  Co l on e l  M h l o n go  i n  th a t  

ca m p a i g n  a u thor is e d  by  J i ba .  

A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR ET O R IU S  SC:   No w yo u  h av e  t o l d  t h e  Ch a i r  t h a t  

t h is  c o nv ers a t i on  be tw ee n  Mr  J o ub er t  a n d  C o l on e l  M h l on g o  w as  

rec or de d ?  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   T ha t  i s  c o r r ec t  C h a i r .  20 

A D V PA U L J O SEPH  PR ETO R IU S  SC :   Yo u  i n fo r m ed  t h e  i nv es t i g a to rs  

t ha t  i t  h a d  be e n  r ec or de d  b u t  a s  o f  ye s te rd ay  w e  h a d  no t  b ee n  o r  t h e  

inv es t i ga to rs  ha d  no t  be e n  a b le  t o  o b ta i n  t he  r ec or d i n g ?  

A D V M XO L IS I  SA N D IL E  O L IV ER  N XA SA N A:   T ha t  i s  c o r r ec t  C h a i r .  

A D V PA U L J O SE PH  PR E TO R IU S  SC :   Yo u  m a n a ge d  t o  o b ta i n  t he  
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C HA IR PER SO N :   Yes ,  ye s ,  n o  t ha nk  y ou  v e ry  m u c h  o nc e  a ga i n ,  y ou  a r e  

exc us e d .    

 We  ad jo u r n ,  a n d  t o m or r o w  w e  w i l l  s ta r t  a t  –  w ha t  t i m e  s h ou l d  

we  . . .  

IN Q UIRY AD J O U RN S TO  1 3  M AY 2 01 9  
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2nd floor, Hillside House 
17 Empire Road, 

Parktown 
Johannesburg 

2193 
Tel (International): +27 (10) 214-0651 

Tel (Tollfree): 0800 222 097 
Email: inquiries@sastatecapture.org.za 

Web: www.sastatecapture.org.za 
   

JUDICIAL COMMISSION OF INQUIRY INTO ALLEGATIONS OF STATE CAPTURE, 

CORRUPTION AND FRAUD IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR INCLUDING ORGANS OF STATE 

 

NOTICE IN TERMS OF RULE 3.3 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

 

TO  : COLONEL WELCOME STHEMBISO MHLONGO 

 

CELL  : 082 946 0260 / 084 762 9664 

 

EMAIL : mhlongows@saps.org.za 

 

IN TERMS OF RULE 3.3 OF THE RULES OF THE JUDICIAL COMMISSION OF 

INQUIRY INTO ALLEGATIONS OF STATE CAPTURE, CORRUPTION AND 

FRAUD IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR INCLUDING ORGANS OF STATE (“THE 

COMMISSION”), YOU ARE HEREBY GIVEN NOTICE THAT: 

1 The Commission’s Legal Team intends to present the evidence of Mr Johan Booysen 

(“Mr Booysen”) at its hearing held at 4th Floor, Hill on Empire, 16 Empire Road, 

Parktown, Johannesburg.  The presentation of his evidence is scheduled to commence 

on Monday, 15 April 2019 or so soon thereafter as his evidence may be heard.  The 

evidence in question implicates, or may implicate you in unlawful, illegal or improper 

conduct in the respects set out below. 

2 The allegations in the evidence of Mr Booysen implicates or may implicate you in, inter 

alia, the following respects: 

2.1 You improperly and/or unlawfully sought to- 

2.1.1 unduly interfere in the investigative independence of the National 

Prosecuting Authority (“NPA”), the Directorate for Priority Crime 
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Investigation (“DPCI”) commonly known as the HAWKS and/or 

the South African Police Services (“SAPS”);  

2.1.2 unduly decline and/or delay and/or obstruct recommended 

prosecutions;  

2.1.3 participate in the undue persecution of officials of the NPA, the 

Independent Police Investigative Directorate (“IPID”) and/or the 

DPCI; and 

2.1.4 destabilize the NPA, the DPCI and/or the SAPS. 

2.2 In acting as set out above, you allegedly sought to enable the state capture of the 

criminal justice system. 

3 The relevant portions of the statement of Mr Booysen which implicate, or may 

implicate, you in the above allegations are annexed hereto marked “A”.  Your attention 

is drawn to paragraphs 42-45 of his statement and the annexures referred to therein, if 

any.   

4 Due to the fact that you are implicated or may be implicated by the evidence of Mr 

Booysen, you are entitled to attend the hearing at which that evidence is being presented. 

You are also entitled to be assisted by a legal representative of your choice when that 

evidence is presented.  The full statement of Mr Booysen will be uploaded on the 

Commission’s website (www.sastatecapture.org.za) as soon as he concludes his 

evidence.  The transcript will be uploaded daily. 

5 If you wish to: 

5.1 give evidence yourself; 

5.2 call any witness to give evidence on your behalf; or 

5.3 cross-examine the witness 

Y10-WSM-166LEA-10-166



 

3 
 

then you must apply, within fourteen (14) calendar days of this notice, in writing to the 

Commission for leave to do so. 

6 An application referred to in paragraph 5 above must be submitted to the Secretary of 

the Commission. The application must be submitted with a statement from you in which 

you respond to the witness’ statement in so far as it implicates you. The statement must 

identify what parts of the witness statement are disputed or denied and the grounds on 

which they are disputed or denied. 

7 In the event that you believe that you have not been given a reasonable time from the 

issuance of this notice to the date on which the witness is to give evidence as set out 

above and you are prejudiced thereby, you may apply to the Commission in writing for 

such order as will ensure that you are not seriously prejudiced. 

8 Please take note that even if you do not make an application under Rule 3.4:  

8.1 in terms of Rule 3.10, the Chairperson may, at any time, direct you to respond in 

writing to the allegations against you or to answer (in writing) questions arising 

from the statement; and 

8.2 in terms of Regulation 10(6) of the Regulations of the Judicial Commission of 

Inquiry into Allegations of State Capture, Corruption and Fraud in the Public 

Sector including Organs of State GN 105 of 9 February 2018 published in 

Government Gazette 41436, as amended, the Chairperson may direct you to 

appear before the Commission to give evidence which has a bearing on a matter 

being investigated. 

9 The extracts of the witness statement provided to you are confidential.  Your attention 

is drawn to Regulations 11(3) and 12(2)(c) governing  the Commission, which make it 

a criminal offence for anyone to  disseminate or publish, without the written permission 

of the Chairperson, any document (which includes witnesses’ statements) submitted to 

the Commission by any person in connection with the Commission’s inquiry. 
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DATED AT PARKTOWN ON THIS 9th DAY OF APRIL 2019. 

 

 

____________________________________________ 

MR P PEDLAR  

Acting Secretary 

Judicial Commission of Inquiry into Allegations of  

State Capture, Corruption and Fraud  

in the Public Sector including Organs of State 
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AFFIDAVIT 

I the undersigned, 

JOHAN WESSEL BOOYSEN 

do hereby state under oath that: 

1. 

I am an adult male South African citizen residing in Pretoria, Gauteng Province. 

2. 
All facts stated herein are, unless the context indicates otherwise, within my own 

personal knowledge and are to the best of my belief both true and correct. 

3. 

I will attempt to keep my submission brief in order to avoid prolixity and to 

unnecessarily burden the Commission. I will seek to highlight key aspects, events 

and dramatis personae. Should it become necessary I will provide additional facts. 

MY POLICE CAREER AND QUALIFICATIONS 

4. 

I was a career policeman having joined the South African Police in 1976. I was an 

officer before our democracy in 1995 and was part of the transformation process 

from a Police Force to a Police Service. I regard my integration into the new Police 

Service, including my promotion to the ranks of Colonel, Brigadier and Major­ 

General subsequent to the democratic dispensation in South Africa, as one of my 
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premises. During the subsequent searches a number of incriminating documents 

were seized. One such document was the confidential Soobramoney progress report 

into the investigation, which I had provided to the Provincial Commissioner, Ngobeni, 

and Ntanjana. A copy of the progress report is attached as Annexure "JWB 1." 

42. 

In a brazen attempt Panday approached a member of Cato Manor, Warrant-Officer 

Paul Mostert ("Mostert"), and requested him to either steal the exhibits or to set the 

building where the exhibits were kept alight. Panday told Mostert that he could name 

his price. Panday somehow knew exactly where the files were kept. This was told to 

me personally by Mostert. 

43. 

We attempted to set up a sting operation in terms of section 252(a) of the Criminal 

Procedure Act, but Panday must have suspected something as he did not engage 

further with Mostert when Mostert phoned him back. 

44. 

It later emerged during the investigation communication interceptions authorised in 

terms of Act 70 of Act 2002, that one of the Colonels at the HAWKS, 

Colonel Welcome S (WS) Mhlongo ("Mhlongo") had links with Panday and I 

therefore· had good reason to suspect that Mhlongo had informed Panday where the 

files were kept. 

45. 

Mhlongo was later implicated by Advocate Mxolisi Nxasana for attempting to 'find 

dirt' on Nxasana at the behest of Advocate Nomgcobo Jiba ("Jiba"). This was when 

Nxasana had succeeded Jiba as the National Director of Public Prosecutions 

13 
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("NDPP"). I acquired a copy of the statement of Mr Terence John Joubert 

("Joubert"), a Risk Specialist contracted to the office of the NPA, which confirms 

this. A copy of Joubert's statement is attached Annexure "JWB 2." 

46. 

Further communications intercepted revealed that on the same day that Madhoe had 

been arrested, Panday had phoned Deebo Mzobe ("Mzobe") during the evening and 

complained to Mzobe that I set them up. I believe that Mzobe is the relative of former 

President Jacob Zuma ("Zuma"). During the intercepted discussion. between Panday 

and Mzobe they commented that "Booysen had to be taken care of because 

Booysen was standing in the way of everything and that Booysen's wings must be 

clipped'. The discussion related to the investigation against Panday who was a 

business partner of Mzobe, See attached Annexure "JWB 3." This is an example of 

one of the conversations that were recorded. The other recordings relating to the 

Panday investigation can be made available to the Commission's investigators, if so 

required. 

47. 

Panday also had close business ties with one of Zuma's sons, namely Mr Edward 

Zuma. During the investigation it came to light that Panday had already received 

approximately R45 million from SAPS and that a further R 15 million was about to be 

paid to him. I immediately informed SAPS's financial services not to release the 

money to Panday until the corruption investigation had been concluded. Panday 

initially threatened me with legal action, however he did not pursue the threats. 
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230.10. "It will take South Africa's criminal-justice sector years to recover from 

the disruptive impact of the Zuma era, during which good men were 

booted from their jobs for doing the right thing. The chilling impact this 

had on prosecutors and police officers is immeasurable. Those who 

were willing to bend the rules and apply two sets of rules, one for Zuma 

and his cronies and another for the rest of us, thrived". Adriaan 

Sasson & Pieter du Toit. In their book "Enemy of the People' page 95. 

230.11. I was interviewed by researchers for "State Capacity Research Project 

titled "Betrayal of the Promise: How South Africa is being stolen" 

published in May 2017. I have read the report. The chapter dealing with 

"Securing a Loyal Intelligence and Security Apparatus", [pages 19 and 

20] accurately chronicles some of the events I have described above. 

Pages 50 to 52 under the heading "Investigations and prosecutions" 

are also relevant. I attach an extract from this report as Annexure 

"JWB 29." 

230.12. I have titled a book which I co-wrote with journalist Jessica Pitchford 

"Blood on their Hands" I sincerely believe that those who allowed 

themselves, for whatever reason, to become part of the captured 
factions at the NPA and in Law enforcement have done our country a 

grave disservice. They have blood on their hands. 

231. 

I know and understand the contents of this declaration. 

I have no objection to take the prescribed Oath. 

I consider the oath to be binding on my conscience. 
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I certify that the deponent who acknowledges that he knows and understands the 

contents of this affidavit; that it is the truth to the best of his knowledge and belief 

and that he has no objection to taking the prescribed oath and regards the same 

as binding on the deponent's conscience and the administration of the oath 

complied with the Regulations contained in Government Gazette No. R1258 of 

21 July 1972, as amended. This affidavit is signed and sworn to before me at 

Centurion on this the 2nd Day of April 2019 at 14 : 3 2' 

EX OFFICIO: -- - 
IOU'fH AftMIQAN .-&16! &eRV16E 

MANAGEMENT INTERVENTION 
HEAD OFFICE PRETORIA 

2019 �4- 0 2 

HEAD: MIAC 
SUIO-AFRIKAANSE POLISIEDIENS 

FULL NAMES: 

�� ::)o.�\J\<;;_.s. � 

PHYSICAL ADDRESS: 

C�� :f���Dy��� -- 

DESIGNATION: 

���"-- 
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AFFlDAVJT 

I, the undenigoed, 

TERENCE JOHN .JOUBERT, 
States under oath in English: 

1. 

I am an adult male 45years· old with ID no. 680728 5526 085, and residing 
at 32 Roosevelt Road, Padfield Park, Pinetown. 3610 with telephone number 
(031) 3345095, with cell number 0765966332 and I am employed as a Risk 
Specialist for the National Prosecuting Authority of SA, 88 Field Street, 3RD 

( _) Floor, Southern Life Building, Durban, 400 I. 

2. 
I hereby make oath and say that the facts deposed to herein are within my 
own personal knowledge and belief unless otherwise stated and arc true and 
correct. 

3. 

(_) 

On the 2013-09-18, I was on duty and I was supposed to fetch Adv. Jiba 
from the Ushaka International Airport. After making the arrangements I got 
a call from Adv. Jiba's secretary to say that she would be fetched by Col. 
Mhlongo on instructions from the DPP-KZN. Col. Mhlongo is currently 
seconded to NPA's Missing Person's Unit, that is headed by Debra Quinn in 
the province and by Shawn Abrahams at VGM. Their job is to assist 
members of the NP A to obtain information by interviewing witnesses to 
conclude their investigations. Shortly after the meeting between Adv. Jiba 
and Col Mhlongo, he (Col. Mhlongo) came to me in my office and told me 
that the new guy (referring to the new NDPP Mr. Nxasana), does not like 
Adv. Jiba and Adv. Mrwebi. He is aware that I do have a great relationship 
with Adv. Mrwebi and he was playing on my emotions. I asked why he 
thought so, and he said that he was sent by Jiba, as she is convinced that this 
guy is not the right person for the job and that we should try and find 
something on him as they did against Mr. Gum.ede. 
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4. 

Mr. Oumedc was the first person that we had heard about who would have 
been appointed the NDPP. The DPP had then insisted that Adv. Makhosi 
(prosecutor) make a statement against Mr. Gumede concerning the manner 
in which he (Mr. Gumede) had ill-treated her. This incident gave us 
indications as to the kind of people we were dealing with and to what 
lengths these people would go to get their way. Col. Mhlongo was 
instrumental in mobilizing people to gang up against Mr. Gumede. 

s. 

I then told him that this would be playing with fire as we are only small fries 
and when elephants fight the grass suffers was my oomment to his 
suggestion. Col. Mhlongo assured me that their efforts would not be in vain 
as Jiba had said if this man (Mr. Nxasana) is removed, then she would be 
appointed again. The plan was not whether Mr. Nxasana is guilty but the 
mere fact that they wanted to embarrass him and insist that he be removed. 

6. 

On the 18th November 2013 we (Col. Mhlongo and I) had another meeting, 
but this time to discuss the fact that there are two unknown police officials 
occupying an office next to the OPP. When I raised this with the OPP, my 
executive manager, Mr. Ramahana flew down to Durban to infonn me that 
the OPP complained about the manner in which I bandied the issue of the 
police officials. I should leave those members as they are. and I should not 
ask too many questions. The police officials are said to be here to protect the 
DPP, but this is done without any TRA (Threat Risk Assessment) as per the 
security policy. We have requested secondment letters from SAPS but to 
date we have not received any correspondence from SAPS. 

7. 
Col Mhlongo then informed me that I should not worry about these two 
members as they were brought to work on the project against the NDPP. 
They went to Umlazi SAPS where they found people that could implicate 
Mr. Nxasana in a murder case. This case apparently happened in 1985/6 and 
his mother (who is a teacher) paid for the docket to disappear. The police 

• 
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officials interviewed people in the Umlazi area to see whether they could not 
get tangible evidence out of them. These two police members were given a 
vehicle from the Provincial Commissioner to do their investigations against 
theNDPP. 

8. 

Col.' Mb.longo also asked that I must assist them with somebody that works 
at RAF (Road Accident Fund) because the information was that he, Mr. 
Nxasana had embezzled money from RAF. He also mentioned that Mr. 
Nxasana wife worked there. I told him that I would talk to people that I 
knew to see whether they could assist us. He then infonned me that even if 
he is moved from the NP A to another place, he would continue his 
investigation from wherever he is. 

9. 
I know and understand the contents of this statement 
I have no objection to taking the prescribed oath. 
I consider the prescribed oath to be binding to my conscience. 

DATED AT DURBAN Tms 

ERT 

The abovementioned statement as taken me and the deponent has 
acknowledged that he knows and understands the content of this statement 
This statement was sworn to before me and the deponent's signature was 
placed thereon in my presence at Durban on 2013-11-25. 
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2nd floor, Hillside House 
17 Empire Road, 

Parktown 
Johannesburg 

2193 
Tel (International): +27 (10) 214-0651 

Tel (Tollfree): 0800 222 097 
Email: inquiries@sastatecapture.org.za 

Web: www.sastatecapture.org.za 
   

JUDICIAL COMMISSION OF INQUIRY INTO ALLEGATIONS OF STATE CAPTURE, 

CORRUPTION AND FRAUD IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR INCLUDING ORGANS OF STATE 

 

NOTICE IN TERMS OF RULE 3.3 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

TO  : COL WELCOME STHEMBISO MHLONGO 

 

EMAIL : mhlongows@saps.org.za 

 

 

 

IN TERMS OF RULE 3.3 OF THE RULES OF THE JUDICIAL COMMISSION OF 

INQUIRY INTO ALLEGATIONS OF STATE CAPTURE, CORRUPTION AND FRAUD 

IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR INCLUDING ORGANS OF STATE (“THE COMMISSION”), 

YOU ARE HEREBY GIVEN NOTICE THAT: 

1 The Commission’s Legal Team intends to present the further evidence of Mr Mxolisi 

Nxasana (“Mr Nxasana”) at its hearing held at 4th Floor, Hill on Empire, 16 Empire 

Road, Parktown, Johannesburg.  The presentation of Mr Nxasana’s evidence will 

continue Monday, 8 July 2019, or so soon thereafter as his evidence may be heard.  In 

the event of a change of date, it will be announced on the Commission’s website 

(www.sastatecapture.org.za) and in the media.  The evidence in question implicates or 

may implicate you in unlawful, illegal or improper conduct in the respects set out below. 

2 Mr Nxasana’s statement, which implicates or may implicate you, is annexed hereto 

marked “A”. 

3 The relevant annexures to Mr Nxasana’s statement are annexed hereto marked “B”. 

4 Mr Nxasana’s evidence implicates or may implicate you in the following respects: 

4.1 On the instruction of Ms. Jiba you sought information about Mr. Nxasana, in 

order to discredit him. 
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See: paragraph 34 read with paragraph 30 and paragraph 36.3 of Mr. 

Nxasana’s statement 

  See too:  paragraphs 36.5 and 37 of Mr. Nxasana’s statement 

5 Due to the fact that you are implicated or may be implicated by the evidence of Mr. 

Nxasana, you are entitled to attend the hearing at which that evidence is being presented.  

You are also entitled to be assisted by a legal representative of your choice when that 

evidence is presented.  The full statement of Mr. Nxasana will be uploaded on the 

Commission’s website as soon as he concludes his evidence.  The transcript will be 

uploaded daily.  The evidence of Mr. Nxasana given on Wednesday, 12 June2019 has 

been uploaded on the Commission’s website. 

6 If you wish to: 

6.1 give evidence yourself; 

6.2 call any witness to give evidence on your behalf;  or 

6.3 cross-examine the witness 

then you must apply, within fourteen (14) calendar days of this notice, in writing to the 

Commission for leave to do so. 

7 An application referred to in paragraph 6 above must be submitted to the Secretary of the 

Commission.  The application must be submitted with a statement from you in which you 

respond to the witness’ statement insofar as it implicates you.  The statement must 

identify what parts of the witness statement are disputed or denied and the grounds on 

which they are disputed or denied. 

8 In the event that you believe that you have not been given a reasonable time from the 

issuance of this notice to the date on which the witness is to give evidence as set out 

above and you are prejudiced thereby, you may apply to the Commission in writing for 

such order as will ensure that you are not seriously prejudiced. 

9 Please take note that even if you do not make an application under Rule 3.4: 
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9.1 in terms of Rule 3.10, the Chairperson may, at any time, direct you to respond 

in writing to the allegations against you or to answer (in writing) questions 

arising from the statement;  and 

9.2 in terms of Regulation 10(6) of the Regulations of the Judicial Commission of 

Inquiry into Allegations of State Capture, Corruption and Fraud in the Public 

Sector including Organs of State GN 105 of 9 February 2018 published in 

Government Gazette 41436, as amended, the Chairperson may direct you to 

appear before the Commission to give evidence which has a bearing on a matter 

being investigated. 

10 The witness statement provided to you is confidential.  Your attention is drawn to 

Regulations 11(3) and 12(2)(c) governing the Commission, which make it a criminal 

offence for anyone to disseminate or publish, without the written permission of the 

Chairperson, any document (which includes witnesses’ statements) submitted to the 

Commission by any person in connection with the Commission’s inquiry. 

11 Any response, affidavit or statement in regard to this notice must be sent to Advocate 

André Lamprecht and Shannon van Vuuren at secretary@commissionsc.org.za. 

 

DATED AT PARKTOWN ON THIS 24th DAY OF JUNE 2019. 

 

 

 

 
 

_________________________________________ 

MR P PEDLAR 

Acting Secretary 

Judicial Commission of Inquiry into Allegations 

of State Capture, Corruption and Fraud 

in the Public Sector including Organs of State 
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25 March 2020 

 

 

To: Colonel Mhlongo  

Per email: joelma@vodamail.co.za 

 

 

And to: Major-General Booysen 

Per email: jwbooysen@icloud.com 

 

APPLICATION FOR LEAVE TO ADDUCE EVIDENCE 

 

Applicant: Colonel Welcome Sithembiso Mhlongo 

Witness implicating the applicant: Major-General Booysen 

1. The above-mentioned applicant and witness are thereby notified that the Chairperson of the 

Commission has made the following decision in the applicant’s application for leave to 

adduce evidence before the Commission in connection with the above-mentioned witness’s 

evidence or statement.  

 

1.1. Chairperson’s decision: 

(a) “In as far as the applicant may have failed to timeously deliver his/her application 

for leave to adduce evidence and applied for condonation, condonation is hereby 

granted.  

(b) The applicant is hereby granted leave to adduce evidence.  

(c) The date when the applicant will adduce evidence will be communicated to both 

the applicant and the above-mentioned witness in due course.” 
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Yours sincerely 

 

 

Ms KB SHABALALA 

ACTING SECRETARY, JUDICIAL COMMISSION OF INQUIRY INTO 

ALLEGATIONS OF STATE CAPTURE, CORRUPTION AND FRAUD IN THE 

PUBLIC SECTOR INCLUDING ORGANS OF STATE 

 

 

 

Y10-WSM-210LEA-10-210



INDIA 5692_IID 6  

AUDIO FILE India 5692_IID 6 

AUDIO DATE 18 NOVEMBER 2010  

AUDIO TIME 06:44 

CELL NUMBER  

NO. OF PAGES 3 

DATE TYPED 30/07/2020 

TRANSCRIBED 

BY: 

Anne Bell  

SIGNATURE  

MALE VOICE 1 UNKNOWN 

MALE VOICE 2 MR T PANDAY 

 

MALE VOICE 1 Hello 

MALE VOICE 2 Chief, can you talk?  

MALE VOICE 1 Yes 

MALE VOICE 2 Did my man sms you … the … voucher. 

MALE VOICE 1 No, not yet.  

MALE VOICE 2  He will do it now. 

MALE VOICE 1 Ok 

MALE VOICE 2 Listen, if Dramat can’t sort this thing out – all he needs 

to do is to give an indication to change the I/O. I will 

give you the name of another I/O that must handle the 

case. 

MALE VOICE 1 Hello?  

MALE VOICE 2 Another investigating officer.  
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MALE VOICE 1 Ok. 

MALE VOICE 2 If he can’t, if he says no he can’t squash it or leave it  

whatever … there is a white investigating officer – his 

name is van Loggerenberg - right  

MALE VOICE 1 Mmm … 

MALE VOICE 2 They need to change him to a black guy called 

Mhlongo. I’ll give you his force number. 

MALE VOICE 1 Okay. 

MALE VOICE 2 So if he says [indistinct] no problem take van 

Loggerenberg out of the case and put a black person 

called Mhlongo – he is also from the HAWKS.    

MALE VOICE 1 Okay, okay. He will do it.  He will do it   

MALE VOICE 2 He will do it 

MALE VOICE 1 He will do it. Don’t worry I don’t know why you are 

worried now 

MALE VOICE 2 [laughter]  

MALE VOICE 1 He will do it 

MALE VOICE 2 I am worried 

MALE VOICE 1 No, no, no – he is going to do it. 

MALE VOICE 2 [indistinct] 

MALE VOICE 1 Ja, don’t stress he is going to do it.  I thought we were 

going to talk about something else – he is going to do 

it.   

MALE VOICE 2 Okay 

MALE VOICE 1 Yes, he is going to do it 

MALE VOICE 2 My man will sort out the voucher shortly … what time 

is the game starting?   

MALE VOICE 1 … It is starting very late … apparently they are 

Y10-WSM-212LEA10-210.2



 - 3 - 

accommodating the the United States of America – 

you know those Americans  …. they pumped a lot of 

money into this game so they want to watch … starting 

at half past nine.   

MALE VOICE 2 And why you didn’t go?   

MALE VOICE 1 Look I had to sort some stuff out this side – you know 

I am on the ground, my man.  

MALE VOICE 2 Ja, you … 

MALE VOICE 1 I can’t be watch the games all over  …. 

MALE VOICE 2 [indistinct] underground man 

MALE VOICE 1 Yes, yes 

MALE VOICE 2 Next week we are going to go to Eastern Cape – one 

day – one day we are going to do Pretoria – we are 

going to meet with Head of Procurement for aah … the 

sport.  

MALE VOICE 1 Okay, my friend.  Sure. 

MALE VOICE 2 And then we do the mines as well the next day. 

MALE VOICE 1 Yes 

MALE VOICE 2 ….. take it from there.   

MALE VOICE 1 Thanks  

MALE VOICE 2 …. if you don’t get the voucher in half an hour, sms me 

……. [indistinct] 

MALE VOICE 1 Okay, cool.  

MALE VOICE 2 Thanks [indistinct] 
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INDIA 5694 ------- IID  

AUDIO FILE India 5694 IID ------ 

AUDIO DATE 30 November 2010 

AUDIO TIME 09h47 

CELL NUMBER  

NO. OF PAGES  

DATE TYPED 01/09/2020 

TRANSCRIBED 

BY: 

Anne Bell  

SIGNATURE  

MALE VOICE 1 COLONEL MADHOE 

MALE VOICE 2 T PANDAY 

 

MALE VOICE 1 Ja, babu 

MALE VOICE 2 Sataseekay 

MALE VOICE 1 190 

MALE VOICE 2 190 

MALE VOICE 1 34 

MALE VOICE 2 34 

MALE VOICE 1 849 

MALE VOICE 2 849 [pause] now 

MALE VOICE 1 W S 

MALE VOICE 2 Ja. Now is this guy not going to be like the others? Can 

we trust him?  

MALE VOICE 1 Nah he’s 100’s  

MALE VOICE 2 100% we don’t want to make a fuck-up and put the 
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wrong person there now  

MALE VOICE 1 No, no, no nah 

MALE VOICE 2 [indistinct]  

MALE VOICE 1 ja, it’s in order  

MALE VOICE 2 that’s fine  

MALE VOICE 1 he’s 100’s  

MALE VOICE 2 [indistinct] perfect 

MALE VOICE 1 we got him by his short and fucking curlies  

MALE VOICE 2 okay  

MALE VOICE 1 ja 

MALE VOICE 2 No, I can take it - whatever he needs I can sort him out 

and …  

MALE VOICE 1 Nah, don’t worry, don’t’ worry – maybol what the other 

mather wanted  

MALE VOICE 2 Hi he gave the stuff 

MALE VOICE 1 Maybol  

MALE VOICE 2 May -  hum  - when I meet with you  

MALE VOICE 1 Okay, sharp  

MALE VOICE 2 But …. they gave all my stuff 

MALE VOICE 1 Okay, paisa too  

MALE VOICE 2 No, [indistinct – noise in background] they are waiting 

for an affidavit  

MALE VOICE 1 Ok  

MALE VOICE 2 Can’t get hold of my attorney [noise in background – 

indistinct] 

MALE VOICE 1 [noise in background – indistinct]  

MALE VOICE 2 Okay 
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MALE VOICE 1 Nah 100’s lekker 

MALE VOICE 2 [indistinct – noise in background] 

 [end of recording] 
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INDIA 5692 IID 1800 

AUDIO FILE India 5692 IID ______ 

AUDIO DATE 30 NOVEMBER 2010  

AUDIO TIME 09:48 

CELL NUMBER  

NO. OF PAGES  

DATE TYPED 01/09/2020 

TRANSCRIBED 

BY: 

Anne Bell  

SIGNATURE  

MALE VOICE 1 UNKNOWN 

MALE VOICE 2 T PANDAY 

 

MALE VOICE 1 Hello  

MALE VOICE 2 How’s it. 

MALE VOICE 1 Ja, what’s up with your phone? 

MALE VOICE 2 Ja, just airtime, airtime, airtime. You know how quickly 

airtime goes. 

MALE VOICE 1 Yes, I know, I know. 

MALE VOICE 2 This is a pay as you go man. Listen, ja, so this guy here 

is from that era there – he comes from that situation 

and, you know, I am not sure how far he wants to take 

this thing, he wants to go on – I don’t have a problem 

with that but I don’t mind him investigating – I don’t say 

that people mustn’t investigate but number one the  

manner in which they investigate and number two if we 

can change him as an investigator and put in a black 

person.  
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MALE VOICE 1 hum 

MALE VOICE 2 Because he’s a white investigator and he’s a racist, 

racist, racist, biased person. If ask if I can have an 

interview with him for half an hour with your big guy 

from there, right – with, with the coloured chap – I will 

explain to him why that they should change the 

investigator, that’s all I want – they can continue 

investigating, I don’t have problem with that but if they 

can change the investigator.    

MALE VOICE 1 Okay, okay I am with you on that one 

MALE VOICE 2 You see what I’m saying – you don’t want to, want to 

stop them in the process but there is a black 

investigator called Mhlongo [pause] they can give it to 

him to investigate 

MALE VOICE 1 Okay, okay – okay so let me get back to you afternoon 

meeting them 

MALE VOICE 2 Ja, I will get Mhlongo’s force number for you [pause]. 

Are you happy? 

MALE VOICE 1 Okay. Yes, I’m listening 

MALE VOICE 2 Ja, I’ll get you his force number then you can put him 

as the investigator 

MALE VOICE 1 Okay. Sure 

MALE VOICE 2 Okay. Thank you Chief. 
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AUDIO FILE India 5692 

AUDIO DATE 2 DECEMBER 2010  

AUDIO TIME 09:38 

CELL NUMBER  

NO. OF PAGES 4 

DATE TYPED 30/07/2020 

TRANSCRIBED 

BY: 

Anne Bell  

SIGNATURE  

MALE VOICE 1 COLONEL MHLONGO  

MALE VOICE 2 MR T PANDAY 

 

MALE VOICE 1 Hey, my chief.  

MALE VOICE 2 Hey, my brother 

MALE VOICE 1 I haven’t heard from you for a long time 

MALE VOICE 2 Hi, somebody has to work in the house 

MALE VOICE 1 [indistinct] 

MALE VOICE 2 [indistinct] ... ja, one person working, ten people 

spending. 

MALE VOICE 1 mmm… 

MALE VOICE 2 How are you keeping?  

MALE VOICE 1 Getting, there, getting there … [indistinct] 

MALE VOICE 2 You can talk?  

MALE VOICE 1 Ja, can talk 

MALE VOICE 2 Ok, listen. You guy set up a meeting with me when is – 
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Monday. 

MALE VOICE 1 Sorry 

MALE VOICE 2 Your guy, you know that white guy you put me onto. 

MALE VOICE 1 Ja, ja, ja. Yes 

MALE VOICE 2 He set up the meeting on Monday – he said he can 

help sort this out.  I said fine. Then, I asked him how – 

he said no, he is going to get … these people want to 

tell the truth at last and they are going to tell they went 

into my account illegally – the wife went into my 

account illegally. Ah, I said perfect – at least -  they are 

prepared to come clean.  So he said for all his troubles 

and all the attorney’s troubles is 550 000.   

MALE VOICE 1 Mmm 

MALE VOICE 2 I said, no problem. The day the docket is nullified  

MALE VOICE 1 mmm  

MALE VOICE 2 I’ll give you the cash. I don’t have a problem there. 

Then he comes back, he says no, money up front.   

MALE VOICE 1 Which guy? 

MALE VOICE 2 Fanie [pause].   

MALE VOICE 1 money up front.   

MALE VOICE 2 So, I should leave it?   

MALE VOICE 1 [indistinct] something suspicious.  

MALE VOICE 2 I am not a bad person, I am not saying I am not paying. 

When they gave me such a high amount …  

MALE VOICE 1 [indistinct] they must just do the job  

MALE VOICE 2 that’s my point, do the job – I don’t know if  - at least 

these people want to tell the truth, they are coming 

clean [indistinct] paying for a struggle – pay the 

attorney – keep getting the attorney for the trouble 
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whatever – I said no problem, that all can be done.  

Now, you come back and say no, money up front, I said 

fuck it, leave it.  It doesn’t work like that.  

MALE VOICE 1 Mmm. Shit.  So, mmm then what is the way forward? 

MALE VOICE 2 The way forward is do the job and I pay you guys.  

Simple, I’m not afraid to pay.   

MALE VOICE 1 Mmm, there are of course. [indistinct] A lot of people 

have been promising and promising  

MALE VOICE 2 No, that’s my point - taking, taking, taking, I am not 

giving no one fucking cent – do the job - I am a man of 

my word even if you tell me 600, 700, 500, 200, 100, 

100, whatever, it’s done. Otherwise I keep the same 

money and I fuck them up in court and then I will have 

a civil suite 10 times more plus I’ll embarrass them.    

MALE VOICE 1 mmm [pause] shocking, hey. Huh!  So I haven’t heard 

from you for a long time.   

MALE VOICE 2 Ja, I was busy, I was [indistinct]  

MALE VOICE 1 But the boss was down yesterday.  Did you wrap up 

with him?   

MALE VOICE 2 No, I didn’t man – because they were busy on road 

trips and shit like that.   

MALE VOICE 1 Oh okay.   

MALE VOICE 2 I think this week [indistinct] Sunday?   

MALE VOICE 1 Oh okay.  

MALE VOICE 2 Be with the wife. [indistinct] Probably meet with him.   

MALE VOICE 1 Okay [pause] – yeah! I am still going to find out from 

him.  [indistinct] I can’t understand why he is going that 

route. I mean [indistinct] I mean [indistinct] he must 

produce first then we can even talk about  
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MALE VOICE 2 Yes. That’s it, show us and we are not even going to 

skid away and we can’t do it, we can’t do it, we pay, I 

mean whatever it is we sort out.    

MALE VOICE 1 Mmm .. mmm…   

MALE VOICE 2 Just check and you can let me know [pause]. Did you 

pick that thing up from Madhu?   

MALE VOICE 1 Sorry 

MALE VOICE 2 Did you pick up that stuff for van Loggerenberg? 

MALE VOICE 1 No he hasn’t. I was busy as well.  Yesterday I was busy 

with an examination of MK guys [indistinct] cemetery 

[indistinct]. We got this project for JZ that I am doing for 

[indistinct] for comrades that have been killed by Fanie 

and them [laughter]. 

MALE VOICE 2 [indistinct] 

MALE VOICE 1 So I was busy with that. But I am going try and go to, 

to, to but hey, the problem is yesterday I smashed my 

car so I am trying and sort it out today.  

MALE VOICE 2 Shit, ok you go sort yourself out then. [indistinct] I land 

[indistinct] sort out from then.   

MALE VOICE 1 Ja, but [indistinct] [noise in background] we must meet 

then one of these days [indistinct] and see if we can’t 

find [indistinct] because I also got some things that aah  

that I need to talk about .    

MALE VOICE 2 Okay 

MALE VOICE 1 [indistinct]  

MALE VOICE 2 Thanks, brother. 
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MALE VOICE 2 Hello Ma 

MALE VOICE 1 Chief  

MALE VOICE 2 Yes Chief 

MALE VOICE 1 How’re you 

MALE VOICE 2 I’m [indistinct]  

MALE VOICE 1 Ja, I told that guy cancel everything because I’m not 

comfortable – he told me that the statements were 

taken already and they were taken this morning – 

people have to destroy it and they not very happy – 

that’s a bullshit story  

MALE VOICE 2 I’m telling you 

MALE VOICE 1 Is this guy short of money [indistinct] we’re not children  
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MALE VOICE 1 Is he short of money this guy – is he broke  

MALE VOICE 2 Hey, I think so [indistinct] – hi because and [indistinct] 

don’t where it comes from – [indistinct] I’m very 

confused – I’m not comfortable with anything 

MALE VOICE 1 mmm and me too, you know what if you tell me 500 or 

200 there is no problem – do the work, perform – we’re 

not kids we’re big people – I mean you are not talking 

to a 5 year old or 2 year old here    

MALE VOICE 2 mmm 

MALE VOICE 1 We can sort this out one time 

MALE VOICE 2 mmm, mmm 

MALE VOICE 1 So but we’ll find another way, there’s plenty other ways 

man [indistinct] this is not the way 

MALE VOICE 2 There’s always a way  

MALE VOICE 1 Yes [indistinct]  

MALE VOICE 2 [indistinct] this thing is dying [indistinct]  

MALE VOICE 1 [indistinct] you can see it is dying – there is nobody 

talking about it – I mean they phoned me this morning 

they want to give back my money now – that they 

seized   

MALE VOICE 2 Exactly that is why I am saying – don’t worry yourself   

MALE VOICE 1 Ja, I am not bothered  

MALE VOICE 2 mmm, mmm 

MALE VOICE 1 [indistinct] people just want to extort us, do this, do that, 

that’s unacceptable – you don’t stress, I just want to 

inform you that my position is very clear – my 

commitment to you still stands with Bheki Ntuli  

MALE VOICE 2 mmm mmm  
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MALE VOICE 1 I will take you to that route and wants you to get that big 

job – that still stands – we can sort that out for you 

MALE VOICE 2 mmm mmm  

MALE VOICE 1 but then you know you will be earmarked as our 

security person for Kwa-Zulu Natal  

MALE VOICE 2 Exactly  

MALE VOICE 1 If we want something done we can [indistinct] you to do 

it – end of story  

MALE VOICE 2 Exactly  

MALE VOICE 1 And I [indistinct] just thinking why would this guy, I 

mean, first they told me 650 right   

MALE VOICE 2 Yes 

MALE VOICE 1 then overnight they reduced it – they reckon 270  

MALE VOICE 2 mmm mmm mmm  

MALE VOICE 1 Now from 650 to 270 -  hi! hi! hi!   

MALE VOICE 2 It doesn’t make sense  

MALE VOICE 1 It doesn’t make sense and then I told him nothing 

upfront when the jobs done – they reckon no, no 

upfront  

MALE VOICE 2 mmm 

MALE VOICE 1 Nah, forget it – I think, I think he is buying a property so 

needs a deposit  

MALE VOICE 2 Maybe, ja 

MALE VOICE 1 Ja (pause) [indistinct] we are not children, we big 

people man [indistinct] – if you came to me, I mean – 

you told me upfront 200 do it fine – but it came from 

you  

MALE VOICE 2 Exactly 
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MALE VOICE 1 You know what I’m saying  

MALE VOICE 2 mmm 

MALE VOICE 1 Ja, but don’t stress, we sort out – when you coming to 

meet    

MALE VOICE 2 You can tell me  

MALE VOICE 1 why where’s the car – fixed up  

MALE VOICE 2 Sorry 

MALE VOICE 1 I take you for nice lunch one of these days - come 

MALE VOICE 2 Oh okay sure, no problem – I’ll hear from you 

MALE VOICE 1 Ja I take you for a nice … 

MALE VOICE 2 Tomorrow I’m in Joburg  

MALE VOICE 1 Tomorrow I’m going to the funeral for the judge, man 

MALE VOICE 2 Oh okay.  

MALE VOICE 1 His wife passed away so we going to the funeral – so 

maybe Monday, Tuesday we’ll see 

MALE VOICE 2 Okay 

MALE VOICE 1 Thanks  
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MALE VOICE 1 Good Morning. 

MALE VOICE 2 Morning, how’re you? 

MALE VOICE 1 Good thankyou how are you? 

MALE VOICE 2 I’m fine. 

MALE VOICE 1 Good, good, good.  

MALE VOICE 2 Hey, this man has been pressurising me – what is 

happening?   

MALE VOICE 1 He said, you know what is happening.  

MALE VOICE 2 Ja, he told me well after I asked him hey, what is 

happening. I don’t know are you comfortable with that  

MALE VOICE 1 You are responsible for it. How’s it -  just give me one 

second. Are you my man, you tell me if I must be 

comfortable 

Y10-WSM-227LEA10-210.17



 - 2 - 

MALE VOICE 2 Because you know what I wanted to, to, to – I wanted 

to be an observer to this thing because if anything 

happened I can be able to, you know.   

MALE VOICE 1 Ja, then you know what, you know what tell him to 

leave it, my brother. I will only go ahead with anything if 

you are there.   

MALE VOICE 2 If, if, if that statement is in front of you [indistinct] that 

why I said [indistinct] don’t want to be in a position and 

what if that statement doesn’t come.  

MALE VOICE 1 Ja, that’s my point.  That’s why, that’s why I said …can 

only be done via you because I feel it to be very 

suspicious myself – I mean  

MALE VOICE 2 Hey, I mean I’m, I’m telling you, you know what, I am a 

Comrade brew.   

MALE VOICE 1 Thank you, do me a favour thank you very much, I’m a 

Comrade as well. Tell him leave it we don’t need it 

anymore. I got [indistinct]  

MALE VOICE 2 No, but I don’t want [indistinct] we might need him, I 

don’t want you to tell him that – hey, you know what 

you are not comfortable with everything 2 you don’t 

want this thing to be picked up by me [indistinct] 

because I’m there as a middle man and a and a  …. 

you’ve will be comfortable if there, there is just an 

exchange because [indistinct]  I don’t want him to feel 

[indistinct]    

MALE VOICE 1 Tell him you spoke to me and I said that leave it I’ve got   

another way of sorting this out – I don’t need it to be 

sorted out [indistinct]    

MALE VOICE 2 Na, it must be an exchange brew, it must be an 

exchange. [indistinct]  
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MALE VOICE 1 There’s the books there. Exactly.  

MALE VOICE 2 Why, why it had to be like that 

MALE VOICE 1 I agree with you. Tell him that I … 

MALE VOICE 2 [indistinct] don’t know what [indistinct] you know. 

[indistinct]  I believe in exchanging things here and then 

not as [indistinct] something will come.    

MALE VOICE 1 Thank you very much, my brother. You are a Comrade 

like me and I’ve got things in store for you with Mbeke 

Mtuli and shit like that [indistinct] is the new MEC for 

Safety and Security. You know that …    

MALE VOICE 2 Ja.  

MALE VOICE 1 Ja, so you know he is my man.  

MALE VOICE 2 Ja 

MALE VOICE 1 So I don’t want that to ruin our friendship and our 

relationship  

MALE VOICE 2 I don’t want to we’ve still got a long way to go. There’s 

a lot [indistinct] 

MALE VOICE 1 That’s my point [indistinct] no, …. a lot of positions 

[indistinct] ….  

MALE VOICE 2 He is in the Police, I am in the Police…   

MALE VOICE 1 That’s my point, that’s my point – look, I don’t feel 

comfortable …  

MALE VOICE 2 I’ll tell him that you said you are not comfortable with 

everything and [indistinct]   

MALE VOICE 1 Phone him and [indistinct] say to him I am busy in 

meetings – you spoke to me, I did spoke to you and 

after I spoke to you because I was going to give you 

[indistinct] 
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MALE VOICE 2 Why it has to be done like that 

MALE VOICE 1 That’s my point – I ask him yesterday 

MALE VOICE 2 Why it had to be done like that 

MALE VOICE 2 [indistinct] because we got lots of queries about this 

thing and I 

MALE VOICE 1 He did – he did say to him see [indistinct] you will 

explain to him later  

MALE VOICE 2 mmm  

MALE VOICE 1 say to him you will explain to him later then when we 

meet him later I will explain to him in person – I will 

meet with you and him a bit later – no prob – I’ll sit with 

him and explain [indistinct] there is nothing this – I can 

even make a booklet 10 times this thing – there is no 

problem but it can’t be done this way. 

MALE VOICE 2 mmm 

MALE VOICE 1 Okay [indistinct] 
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MALE VOICE 1 Hello  

MALE VOICE 2 Hey, colonel, how are you? 

MALE VOICE 1 Fine, yourself?  

MALE VOICE 2 I’m fine. Long time no hear from you 

MALE VOICE 1 How you feeling 

MALE VOICE 2 Getting there, better  

MALE VOICE 1 Ja, your son told me you were in the hospital, man  

MALE VOICE 2 Mmm, mmm, mmm 

MALE VOICE 1 Ja, ja, ja 

MALE VOICE 2 So how’re you, alright? 

MALE VOICE 1 Good, carrying on, huh 

MALE VOICE 2 mmm, mmm. Still that side at square 

MALE VOICE 1 Ja, ja, ja 
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MALE VOICE 2 Okay 

MALE VOICE 1 Still around? 

MALE VOICE 2 Ja, so any news? 

MALE VOICE 1 Nah – nothing  

MALE VOICE 2 What I think those people are – they are thing is on a 

dying stage [indistinct]  

MALE VOICE 1 Ja, no it’s finished 

MALE VOICE 2 Mmm, mmm 

MALE VOICE 1 Ha, ha, they said so too 

MALE VOICE 2 Mmm, mmm 

MALE VOICE 1 Ja 

MALE VOICE 2 So what’s is like, what is happening now – quiet?    

MALE VOICE 1 Ja, totally. We’ll be back one of the days  

MALE VOICE 2 Oh, okay because I believe tomorrow is Mamma’s 

birthday 

MALE VOICE 1 Ja, ja 

MALE VOICE 2 Mmm, 

MALE VOICE 1 Hey, I don’t know, hey, I don’t know but if we need to 

buy something for her what do we do 

MALE VOICE 2 [laughter] ja 

MALE VOICE 1 Or [S]he’s going to refuse it – to say I don’t need 

anything from anyone 

MALE VOICE 2 [laughter] Ja, you can get  

MALE VOICE 1 mmm 

MALE VOICE 2 no, don’t worry 

MALE VOICE 1 [indistinct] 

MALE VOICE 2 its fine then 

Y10-WSM-232LEA10-210.22



 - 3 - 

MALE VOICE 1 Where’s our man? Is he alright? 

MALE VOICE 2 Nah, everything is alright 

MALE VOICE 1 Oh okay. 

MALE VOICE 2 Ja 

MALE VOICE 1 But me as well, my thing they are pushing my thing – 

Booysen signed my transfer 

MALE VOICE 2 Ja, you see – its signed you’re fixed up 

MALE VOICE 1 So now I’m just waiting for those people to 

acknowledge it and tell me when to start 

MALE VOICE 2 Ja, nah that’s good 

MALE VOICE 1 [indistinct] 

MALE VOICE 2 That’s good, ja, because she was putting some 

pressure from that side too 

MALE VOICE 1 Oh okay 

MALE VOICE 2 Ja, ja she was putting some pressure 

MALE VOICE 1 Oh okay 

MALE VOICE 2 Plus with the other oue Lucas as well so it was good  

MALE VOICE 1 It was good, okay 

MALE VOICE 2 Ja, both sides  

MALE VOICE 1 Yeah, yeah hi no we’ll talk man 

MALE VOICE 2 Ja, good you must come, come and see me 

MALE VOICE 1 Sure okay, boet 

MALE VOICE 2 No, okay, my man 
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MALE VOICE 1 Chief  

MALE VOICE 2 Okay, how’s it man? 

MALE VOICE 1 Hey, I’m still waiting, man 

MALE VOICE 2 Ja, ….. these ous are not around, they’re in Miami  

MALE VOICE 1 Oh okay and I’m in Pretoria 

MALE VOICE 2 Ja, these other ous they went last week Saturday to 

Miami 

MALE VOICE 1 Which ones? 

MALE VOICE 2 The one from the province  

MALE VOICE 1 Oh okay 

MALE VOICE 2 Ja. You know the larney from the province  

MALE VOICE 1 Yes, yes, yes 

MALE VOICE 2 Ja, he’s gone to Miami he’s only coming back on Friday 
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MALE VOICE 1 Oh okay 

MALE VOICE 2 Ja, but he’s got, got the instruction already  

MALE VOICE 1 Oh okay. But I’m waiting, waiting and I’ve arranged my 

other side as well  

MALE VOICE 2 Ja, good, good. They say as soon as he comes back 

he’ll address it 

MALE VOICE 1 Oh okay 

MALE VOICE 2 Ja, because when the big man phoned him he was in 

Miami, that time 

MALE VOICE 1 Oh, okay 

MALE VOICE 2 Ja, [indistinct] – sorry, boss 

MALE VOICE 1 What are they doing in Miami 

MALE VOICE 2 I don’t know what they went, there are six of them – 

four from Pretoria and two from the province went  

MALE VOICE 1 Ok, which two from province? 

MALE VOICE 2 Booysen.  

MALE VOICE 1 Only him and who else? 

MALE VOICE 2 And Hunter – and Hunter.  

MALE VOICE 1 Oh okay, okay 

MALE VOICE 2 Ja, something I don’t know what to do with some 

borders or some story, man 

MALE VOICE 1 oh okay. 

MALE VOICE 2 Ja, they got international conference 

MALE VOICE 1 Oh okay 

MALE VOICE 2 ja, a’but 2 weeks  

MALE VOICE 1 2 weeks [indistinct] 

MALE VOICE 2 hey, lekker, ha [laughter] 
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MALE VOICE 1 These people wanted to take me for course, hey. I told 

them I’m not going 

MALE VOICE 2 I heard them – on the 8th, 8th May 

MALE VOICE 1 Ja, they wanted to take me for that course  

MALE VOICE 2 Ja, to Thabong – I saw your name there 

MALE VOICE 1 Ja, should have taken it out – I’m not going, I’m, I’m still 

waiting  

MALE VOICE 2 Ja, you saw all the other guys’ names were on that 

thing to Paarl as well 

MALE VOICE 1 Okay, who, who’s going to Paarl  

MALE VOICE 2 There’s two lists  

MALE VOICE 1 Sorry 

MALE VOICE 2 There’s two lists, there is one lot is going to Thabong 

and the other lot [END OF RECORDING] 
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